
CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
Laguna Beach, California

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Year Ended June 30~ 2009



(This page intentionally left blank)



CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH, CALIFORNIA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

CITY COUNCIL:

Kelly Boyd, Mayor
Elizabeth Pearson, Mayor Pro-Tern

Toni Iseman, Council Member
Jane Egly, Council Member

Verna Roninger~ Council Member

Laura Parisi, City Treasurer Martha Anderson, City Clerk

Kenneth Frank J City Manager

Prepared By:

Finance Department



(This page intentionally left blank)



CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Year Ended June 30~ 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION (Unaudited)

Letter of Transmittal

Organizational Chart

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors' Report

Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information)

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental Funds:

v

1

5

17

18

Balance Sheet 22

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets 25

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 26

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 28

Proprietary Funds:

Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Revenues} Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Statement of Cash Flows

30

31

32



CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

(Continued)

TABLE OF CONTENTS, (CONTINUED)

Fiduciary Funds:

Statement of Fiducjary Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information:

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­
Budget and Actual:

General Fund

Blueb~rd Landslide Fund

Measure A Fund

Sewer Serv~ces Fund

Note to Required Supplementary Information

Supplementary S·chedules~

General Fund~

34

35

68

70

71

72

73

• ConsoHdating Batance Sheet by Sub-Fund 78

• Consolidatjng Statement of Revenues t Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance by Sub-Fund 80

Nonmajor Speclal Revenue Funds:

• Comb~ning Batance Sheet

• Combtning Statement of Revenues, Expendttures 1 and Changes
in Fund Balances

• Schedure of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ­
Budget and Actuat:

• Gas Tax Fund

• Street Lighting District Fund

84

86

88

89



CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Comprehensive Annual Financia~ Report

(Continued)

TABLE OF CONTENTS, (CONTINUED)

• Miscellaneous Grants Fund

• Asset Forfeiture Fund

• General Obligations Bonds Debt Service Fund

• Capital Projects Fund

Internal Serv~ce Funds:

• Combining Statement of Net Assets

Page

90
'..

'91'"

92

93

96

• Combining Statement of Revenues t Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 97

• Combining Statement of Cash FloVvS

Agency Funds:

• Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

98

102

• Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 103

OTHER INFORMAliON (Unaudited)

• Net Assets by Component - Last Seven Fiscal Years 107

• Changes in Net Assets - Last Seven Fiscal Years 108

• Fund Balances of Governmental Funds - Last Seven Fiscal Years 110

• Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds - Last Seven Fiscal Years 111

• Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

- Last Ten Fiscal Years 112



CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

(Continued)

TABLE OF CONTENTS, (CONTINUED)

• Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates- Last Ten Fiscal Years

• Principal Property Tax Payers- Current Year and Nine Years Ago

• Property Tax Levies and Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years

• Legal Debt Margin w. Last Ten Fiscal Years

• Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last Ten Fisca~ Years

• Full-time City Employees by Function- Last Ten Fiscal Years

• Operating Indicators - Last Ten Fiscal Years

• Capital Asset Statistics by Fundion - Last Ten Fjscal Years

Page

114

116

117

118

120

122

124

126



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



(This page intentionalJy left blank)



February 1,2010

To the Melnbers of the City Council & Citizens of the City of Laguna Beach:

It is th.e policy of the City of Lagul1a Beach to allnually publish a complete set of financial statements
presented in. cOl1formity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited· in
accordance with. generally accepted auditillg stan.dards by a fi.nn. of certified public account311ts.
Pursuant to that requireU1ent, we hereby issue the cOll1prehensive annual financial statements of the City
of Laguna Beach ("the City") for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009~ TIle financial staten1ents
accompallying tl1is transmittal letter are for tIle primary govern,ment only aIld do not iI1clude any ­
con1ponent Ullits.

This report consists ofmanagement~srepresentations concen1ing tile finances of tIle City. Consequently',
managem.ent aSSUTI1es full responsibility for tile con1pleteness and. reliability of all the information
presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these represelltations, management of
t11e City l1as established a compreh.ensive il1ternal control framework that is designed both to protect th.e'
City"s assets from loss, theft, or misuse alld to c.ompile sufficient reliable inforn1ation for the preparation
of the C~ity's fil1ancial statements in confonnity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal COl1trols should
]10t outweigh their benefits, the· City·'s comprehensive frmnework of internal.co11trols has been designed
to provide reasonable ratl1er than absolute· assurance that the financial statemel1ts will be free [rOIU
material misstatelnent As illanageluent, we assert that, to the best of 'om kno\vledge and belief~ this
financial report is complete·and· reliable in all1uaterial respects.

The City~s financial statern.ents have been au.dited by Mayer Hoffman McCain, P.C. The goal of the
independent audit was to pro\Tide reasollable assurance that th.e financial statem.ents of the City for the
fisc.al year en.ded June 30, 2009, are free of material misstaten1ent. Th.e i11depe·n,dent audit involved
exanlining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial staternents;
assessing th.e accolmting principles used and sigl1ificallt estiInates made by Inanagement; and evaluating
the o\rerall fil1ancial statement presentatiol1. The independent auditor' concluded, based upon the audit~

that th.ere was a reasonable basis for renderillg an unqualified Opil1ion that the City~s financial statenlents
for the fiscal year ended JUlle 30, 2009, were fairly presented in confOflnity with GAAP. The
independent auditor's report is presented as the first com.ponent of the fillancial section of this report.

GAAP requires that managem.ent provide a narrative introduction~overview, and analysis to accompill1Y'
the basic financial statements in the form of Mallagelnent's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). T11is
letter of transmittal is designed to cOll1pleUlent MD&A aJ.1d should be read i]l conjul1ction with it. The
City's MD&A can be found i.tnmediately following the report of the independel1t auditors~

Profile of the Government

The City, incorporated in 1927, is located in southw'est Ora11ge County, approxi.mately 55 ]niles
soutlleast of Los Angeles .. The City currently occupies a land area of 8.84 square miles and serves a
population of approximately 25~OOO. The City is horne of the Pageant oft11e Masters and the Festival of
the Arts~ The City attracts approxin1ately three il1illion visitors annually due to its eight miles of
coastline, tI1e Mediterranean climate and the SUll1mer art festivals an.d pageaIlts.

505 FOREST AVE. LAGUNA BEACH l CA 92651* RECYCLED PAPER
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Mem.bers of the (~ity Council and Citizens of the City of Laguna Beach
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The City has operated under the council-manager form of governm.ent since 1944~ Policy-making and
legislative authority are vested ill a City Council consisting of the Dlayor and four other council
Inembers. The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordin.ances, adopting the
blldget~ appointing COlTIlnittees, and hiril1g both. the City Manager an.d City Attorney. The City Manager
is responsible for carryil1g out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for 'overseeing tIle day~to­

day operations of the City, and for appointin.g· the heads of the various departments. The council is
elected on a n.on,-partisan basis~ Council members serve fo·ur ...year staggered terms, with..new council
members elected every two years~ The mayor is elected by the council members on an an.nual basis~

The City provides a full range of services, including police, fire and Inarille safety protection;
rn.aintenance of streets, parks, the sewer system and parking facilities; solid waste; transit operatiollS;
cOlnlnunity development; recreational activities 311d cultural events; and adlnil1istrative services.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's fi.nancial planning and control. All
departments of the City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City's manager in
January ~ The City Manager uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget.
The City Manager then presents this proposed budget to the council for review in ApriL The council is
requ.ired to hold public- hearings on the proposed budget and to ado.pt a final bud.get by June 30th, the
close of tIle City~s fiscal year~ The budget is organized by department (e.g., police). The level of
budgetary control, i.e. tIle lev'el at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated' amount, is
established at the de.partm.ent level. Witllil1 the General Fund, an available fund balance of 15% of
appropriations is Inaintained for economic wlcertainties~ Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in
this report for each iIldividual govemlnental fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been
adopted~ For the general fund and Inajor special revenue' funds, this comparison is presented as part of
tIle required supplementary infornlation in the accompanying financial statements~ For governmental
fun.ds that have appropriated annual budgets, other than the general fund and. major special revenue
funds, this comparison is presented in the supplem.entary section of the accom.panying financial
statements.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

TIle information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best 'understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within whicl1 the City operates.

Local economy. The City is a balmlced community with commercial, retail, light industrial and
residential areas. Th.e overall City's economy was stable with the City's revenu.es exceeding estimates
and increasing lllod.estly from the prior year. The City's property tax base continues to remaning strong
due to the stable an.d increasing sale prices for homes in. I-,aguna Beach over the last several years. On
December 1, 2008, the National Bureau of Economic Research (NBER) officially announ.ced the U·.S.
econolny slipped il1tO recessioll in 2007. The impact of this recessionary period 011 the City of Laguna
Beach is unknown but is has already had a dramatic effect on the State's revenue base, creatil1g a
particularly bleak overall budget outlook for 2009-10~ With the passage of proposition lA it is muc11
n10re difficult for State legislators to raid. local govenunent final1ces 'but there is a risk that the State rn.ay
still attem.pt to shift some of the burden to local govern.m.ents by reallocatin.g revellues. Evell with the
passage of proposition IA by California voters on November 2,2004 there continu.es to be cO'ncems that
the State's continuing budget dilemmas may impact the City's revenues negatively in the future~

Long-term financial planning~ f"fhe City has undertaken a large capital project, which is in its third
year, is an extensi.ve street rehabilitation project which includes resurfacing streets within four different
major location.s. The original b'udget amount was $6.6 million with 69% of the project cOlTI.pleted in
FY09 an.d the balance of $2~1 Inillion to be com.pleted in FYI O~

Th.e City is continuing its overall rehabilitation of the sewer system. It is anticipated that within the next
two years tile majority of projects subsidized with a State loan of $7 ~O million will be complete~

11
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Cash management policies and practices. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested
prilnarily ill the State Local Agency Il1vestme.nt Fund and in securities oflJ~S~ governnlent agencies.

Cash management of the City is facilitated by the pooling of cash and investments, whereby tIle
max.imlull rate of return and cash flow flexibility can be achieved. Interest earnings are allocated
semi-al1llually to the various funds based on the average cash balance during the preceding six mon.ths~

The Cityts investment transactions are conducted ill conformance with intern.al investment policies and
the State of California Govemnlent Code. The City Council has assign.ed the responsibility for investing
to the elected City t'freasurer. .

Risk management~TIle City is a menlber of the California Insurance Pool Authority (CIPA). eIrA~ a
COllS0rtiulll of 12 cities, was established to pool resources, sllare risks, purchase excess insurance and
share costs for professional risk ffiaIlagement and claims administration~ Meluber cities may be assessed
the difference between funds available and the $20 million annual aggregate coverage in proportion to
their aru1ual premiums in the event of all immin.ent shortfall of fUl1ds. Additional information regarding
risk management can be found in the notes to the fiuaI1cial statements

Pension and other postemployment benefits. TIle City contributes to the California Public ElTIpl.oyees
Retirement System, all agent multiple-elnployer public employee defi.ned benefit pension plan for its
elnployees~ Each year, an illdependent actuary en.gaged by the pel1sion plan calculates the alllount of the
annual contriblltion that the City must Inake to the pensiol1 plan to ensure that the plan will be able to
fully Ineet its obligatiol1S to retired employees on a timely basis. As a matter of policy, the City fu.lly
funds each year~s annual requ.ired contribution. to the pension plan as determined by this funding policy.

The City allows retirees to pay full premiums to the City for health insurance coverage~

Additiollal information regardiIlg the City's pension alTangements and post emploYluent benefits can be
found in the notes to the financial statements~

Other factors affecting financial condition: all JUl1e 1, 2005, the City Council of the City of ·Laguna
Beach proclaimed tIle existel1ce of a local emergency caused by a landslide that occurred on June 1,
2005 ill tIle Bluebird CaJ1YOl1 resulting in t]lC destruction of and damage to public infrastructure and
numerous homes~ The cost of the emergency repair and permanent restoration is approximately $37
million~

In February 2006, the Federal Emergency Man.agement Agency (FEMA) detennin.ed that the landslide
was the result of the heavy winter rains that prompted the February 2005 Presidential Disaster
Declaration~ FEMA along with California Emergen.cy Managern.ent Agency (CALEMA) has
reilnbursed the City approxhl1ately 920/0 of the estimated cost for the em.crgency repair al1d perlnanent
restoratiol1~

As of June 30, 2009 the City of Laguna Beach had received total reimbursement from FEMA and
CALEMA in the amou.ut of $34 million~

On December 13, 2005 voters of the City of Laguna Beach concerned over the cost of the Bluebird
Landslide and the possibility of similar catastrophes in. the future passed Measure A~ This measure
temporarily increased the local sales tax in the City of Laguna Beach ]120/0 for three years generatin.g
approximately $8 million. Revenue received through Measure A will be used toward the emergency
repair and permanent restoration of Bluebird Canyon and for a disaster contingency fund for future
disasters. The 120/0 il1crease became effective July 1, 2006 and ceased on June 30, 2009~

Acknowled.gelTI.ents
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The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services
of the entire staff of the Fin811ce Division.. We would like to express our appreciation to alllnelubers of
the depalilnent who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report.

R;,ec;J;ld' .&-......",~......".,...........

~th Frank Gavin Curran
City Manager Director of Finance and Informatioll TechJl0logy
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Nancy Pauley
Fin.ance Officer
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City Council
City of Laguna Beach, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities~

business-type activities, each major fund~ and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Laguna Beach, California, as of and for the year ended June 30 t 2009, which coHectjvely
comprise the City~s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of the City of Laguna Beach. Our
responsjbiljty tS to express opinions on these financ~aJ statements based on OUf audit. The prtor
year partial comparative information has been derived from the financial statements of the City

. of Laguna Beach for the year ended June 30 t 2008 and 1 in our report dated January 9, 2009 t we
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining~ on a test
basis? evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
aJso inctudes assessing the accounting princrples used and the sign~fjcant estimates made by
management~ as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion~ the financtal statements referred to above present fairly~ in all material respects1

the respective financial position of the governmental activities1 business-type activities r each
major fund l and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Laguna Beach 1

California~ as of June 30~ 2009 l and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows~

where applicable t of the City of Laguna Beach} California for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described further in note 12 to the financiaf statements, the City changed tts method of
accounting for postemployment benefits for the years ending on and after June 30~ 2009.

A primary government is a single regal entity that includes aU funds~ agencjes, departments, and
offices that are not legally separated from the primary government. Component units are other
legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are
financially accQuntabte t as defined by Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
14. Because the primary government financial statements do not include the financial data of
the component units of the entire reporting entity as defined by Government Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 14, the primary government financial statements of the City of
Laguna Beach r do not purport to~ and do not~ present fairly the financial positron of the entire
reporting entity of the City of Laguna Beach r CaJifornia r as of June 30, 2009~ and the changes in
financial position and cash flows~ where appticable~ for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generaUy accepted in the United States of America.

1
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The information identified in the accompanying table of contents as management's discussion
and analysis and required supplementary information are not a required part of the basic
financ,al statements t but are supplementary information required by accounting principles
generalty accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain timited
procedures~ which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement used and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opjnions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Laguna Beach~s basic financial statements. The introductory
section} combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and other
information as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and~ in our opinion~ are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and other information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic ftnancial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
them.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also rssued a report dated
February 1, 2010 on our consideration of the City of Laguna Beach~s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws t regulations t

contracts, and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to descrjbe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compHance and the
results of that testing~ and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

Irvine, California
February 1t 2010
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

f"fhe following discussion and analysis of the fillancial performance of the City of Laguna Beach provides
an overview of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Please read it in
conjunction with the financial statements identified in the accompanying table of contents.

Using the Accompanying Fillancial Statelnents

This 811llual report C011Sists of a series of financial statements. ~rlle Statement of Net Assets and the
Statel11ent of Activities provide infonnation about the activities of the City as a whole and present a
longer-term view of the City's 'finances. Also included in the accompanying report are fund financial
statelnents~ For governmel1tal activities, the fund finmlcial statements tell how these services were
financed in the short term as well as what reluains for future spending. Fund financial statements also
repolt the City's operations in more detail than the govermnent...wide statements by providing information
about the City's most sigl1ificant funds. TIle remaining statements provide financial information about
activities for Wllich the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the bel1efit of those outside of the
government.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual report consists of four parts - maIlagement's discussion and an.alysis (this section), the basic
financial statelnents, required supplementary information, and an optiol1al section that presents cOlnbining
stateluents for nonmajor governmel1tal funds and internal service funds. The basic financial statements
il1clude two l<iIlds of statements that present different views of the City:

• The first two statelnents are government-wide fi.nancial statements that provid.e both long-term and
short...term infolmation abollt tIle City's overall finaJ1Cial status.

• l~he remaining statements are fUl1d financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City
government, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government...wide statements.

• The governmental funds statements tell how general government services, lil(e public safety,
were financed in the short teffi1 as well as what remains for future spending.

• .Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities
the govermnent operates lil(e busil1esses, suell as the City's transit system.

• Fiduciary fund statements provide infofluation about the fiduciary relationships - like the
agel1CY funds of the City - in whicll the City acts solely as agent or trustee for the benefit of
others, to whom the resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statelnents and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary inform.ation that provides additional financial and budgetary informatioll.

Figure A-I summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements, including the portion of the
City govermnent they cover and the types of information they contain. The reluainder of this overview
section of management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and COlltents of each of the
staten1ents~

5



Figure A-I
Major Features of the City's Government-wide alld Fund Financial Statelnents

Fund Statements

Scope

Governtnent-wide
Statelnents

Entire City
governrnent(except
fiduciary funds) and
the City~s

component units

Governmental Funds

The activi ties of the
City that are not
proprietary or
fiduciary

Proprietary Funds

Activities the City
operates similar to
private businesses

Fiduciary Funds

Instances in which
the City is the trustee
or agent for SOlneone
else's resources

Required financial • Statement of net • Balance sheet • Statement of net • Statelnent of
statelnents assets • Statement of assets fiduciary net

• Statement of revenues, • Statement of assets
activities expenditures revenues, • Statement of

and changes in expenses and changes in
fund balances changes in net fiduc ialy net

assets assets

• Statement of
cash flows

Accounting basis Accrual accounting Modified accrual Accrual accounting Accnlal accounting
and measurem"ent and economic aceDunting and and econolnic and economic
focus resources focus current financial resources focus resources focus

resources foellS

T'ype of asset! A II assets and Only assets expected All assets and A11 assets and
liability information liabilities, both to be used up and liabilities, both liabilities~ both

financial and capital~ liabiUties that COIne tinancial and capital, short-term and long-
and short-term and due during the year and short-term and term; the City~s

long-te-rrn or soon thereafter; long-term fiduciary funds do
no capital assets or not currently contain
long-term debt capital assets ~

includ.ed although they can

Type of inflow! All revenues and Revenues for which All revenues and All revenues and
outflow information expenses during cash is received expenses during the expenses during

year, regardless of during or soon after year, regardless of year, regardless of
when cash is the end of the year; when cash is when cash is
received or paid expenditures when received or paid received or paid.

goods or services
have been received
and payment is due
during the year or
soon thereafter

6



Reporting the City as a Whole

The accompanying governluent-wide financial statements include two statements that present fillancial
data for the City as a whole. One of tIle most important questions asl(ed about the City's finances is, "Is
the City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Staten1ent of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities
in a way that helps answer this question~ These statements il1clude all assets and liabilities llsillg th.e
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accountil1g used by most private-sector conlpal1ies. All
of the Cllrrent year's revenlles and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or
paid~

These two statements report the City's net assets and changes in tllem~ You elll think of the City's net
assets ~ the difference between assets and liabilities ---as one way to measure the City's financial health, or
finaI1Cial position. Over time, increases and decreases in the City's net assets are Olle indic.ator of whether
its fil1ancial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other 110nfillancial factors,
however, such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's roads, to assess
the overall health of the City ~

III the Statem.ent of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide tIle Ci.ty into two kinds of
activities:

• Governmental activities -- M:ost of the City's basic services are reported here. Charges for Services,
grants, sales taxes~ property taxes, state subventi.ons, and other revenues finance most of these
activities.

• Business-type activities - 1"'he City charges user fees to customers to offset all or most of the expenses
accounted for in this fund.~

Reporting the City's Maj or FUl1ds

The fund financial statements provide detailed il1formation about the City's most significant funds - not
the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law or by bond covenants.
However, City Council establishes Inany other funds to help it control and Inanage money for particular
purposes or to show that it is meeting administrative responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, or
other money. The City's two kinds of funds - governluental aI1d proprietary - use different accounting
approaches.

• Govenunental fun,ds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, Wllich
focus on how mOlley flows into and out of those funds al1d the balances left at year end that are
available for spending. These fUl1ds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which lueasures cash alld all other CUfrellt financial assets that can readily be convelied to
cas11. The governluental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general
government operations and the basic services it provides~ Governmental fund infonnation helps you
determine whether there are lTIOre or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
fil1ance the City's programs~ We describe the relationsllip or differences between governmelltal
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmel1tal
fU11ds in reconciliatiol1 at the bottom of the fund financial statements.

• Proprietary funds - When, the City charges customers for the services it provides - w~hether to outside
clistonlers or to other units of the City ~ these services are generally reported in proprietary funds~

Proprietary flLnds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statclnent of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise fl111ds (a component of proprietary
funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report ill the government-wide statements but
provide more detail and additional information, such as cas11 flows, for proprietary fUl1ds. We use
il1ternal service funds (the other component of proprietary fu.uds) to report activities that provide
sllpplies and services for the City's other programs and activities.
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Reporting the City's Fiduciary Responsibilities

The City is an agent for certain assets held for, aIld under the control of~ other organizations and
individuals. All of the City's fidtlCiary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Assets~

We exclude these activities froln the City's other financial statemel1ts because the City cannot use these
assets to fil1ance its operations. The City is respol1sible for el1suring that tIle assets reported in these funds
are used for their intended purposes.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A summary of the government-wide statement of net assets follows:

Table 1
Net Assets
(in Mi IIiOIlS)

Governmental
Activities

2009 2008

Business-type
Activities

2009 2008
Total

2009 2008

70&7 72.6
326.7 312.9
397.4 385.5

12.7 11.7
11.8 11.9
24.5 23.6

Current and Othoer Assets $ 68.9
Capital Assets 324.0

Total Assets 392.9

Long-Term Debt Outstanding 12.7
Other Liabilities 10.5

Total IJabilities 23~2

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Debt 318.0
Restricted 11.1
Ullfestricted 40.6

Total N°et Assets $ 369.7

71.8
309~8

11.7
11.6
23.3

305.8
10.8
41.7

1.8
2.7
4.5

1.3
1.3

0.5

3.2

0.8
3.1
3.9

0.3
0.3

3~ 1

3.6

320.7
11.1
41.1

372.9

308.9
10.8
42.2

361.9

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful i.l1dicator of a governluent's financial position.
In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by approximately $372.9 Inillion as of June 30, 2009.

The largest portion of the City's net assets, $320.7 millioll (86%) are reflected in its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land~ street il1frastructllre, buildings, machinery and equipmellt) less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending~ Although the City's investment
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources l1eeded to repay
this debt will be provided from future revenues alld tIle remaining 14% of the City's net assets, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these li.abilities~

A portion of the City's net assets of $11.1 million (3 0/0) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictiol1S on 110W they may be used. The reluaining balance of umestricted l1et assets of $41.1 million
(11 %) may be used to Ineet the govermnent's ongoil1g obligatiol1S to citizel1S and creditors.
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At th.e end of the current fiscal year, the City was able to report positive balances in all three categories of
l1et assets for th.e City as a whole, as well as the governmental activities. F'1or the City's busil1Css-type
activities, the balance was also positive al1d there were no restricted net assets~

The City's total net assets increased by $10.6 million duril1g the current fiscal year. The net assets of
governmental activities illcreased by $10.9 Inillion and business-type activities had a decrease of $351
thousand~

A sUilllnary of the government-wide statement of activities follows:

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

(in thousands)

Governlnental .Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenues

Progrmn Revenues
Charges for Services $ 19,696 18,551 324 349 20,020 18,900
Operating Grants/Contributions 5,445 6,159 1,020 952 6,465 7,111
Cap ital Grants/Constributi0 ns 1,083 7~300 9 862 1~O92 8,162

General Revenues
Taxes and special asseSSlllcnts 45,180 46,]29 45~ 180 46,129
Intergovernmental 92 118 92 118
Rental income 388 355 388 355
Investment incolue 1~769 1~952 10 13 1~779 1,965
M.iscellaneous revenues 300 191 2 4 302 195
Gain (loss) on sale/disposal of

capital assets 303 303
Total Revenues 73,953 81,058 1,365 2,180 75~318 83,238

Expe.nses:
G·enera] GoverOlnent 4,375 4,326 4,375 4~326

COlTIlnunity development 3,769 3,423 3,769 3~423

Public safety 25,698 23,134 25,698 23,134
Public works 18~182 22,374 18,182 22,374
Recreation and social services 4,148 3,839 4,148 3,839
Sewer service operating costs 5,850 4,682 5,850 4,682
Interest and fiseal charges 368 409 368 409
Municipal transit 2,318 2.,1.84 2,318 2,184

Total Expenses 62,390 62,187 2,318 2~ 184 64,708 64~371

Increase in N·et Assets Before Transfers 11,563 18,871 (953) (4) I O~61 0 18,867

Transfers (602) (386) 602 386

Increase in Net Assets 10,961 18,485 (351) 382 10,610 18 j 867

'N·et Assets-Beginning, as Restated 358,800 339,884 3,522 3,140 362,322 343,024

Net Assets-Ending $ 369;761 358~369 3,171 3,522 372,932 361,891
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The City's total revel1ues were $75.3 million while the total expenditures were $64.7 Inillion. Property
taxes were the City's largest revenue source at $26~9 million (35.7% of total revenues and 36.4% of
governmental revenues)~ Transient lodging taxes at $7.8 millio11 (10.3% of total revenues and 10.50/0
governmental revenues) al1d sales tax also at $3 ~4 million (4.50/0 of total revenues and. 4.60/0 of
govermnel1tal revenues) were the second largest revellue sources for the City this past year~ Property
taxes l1ave been steadily increasing from year to year while transient lodging and sales taxes have
experienced decreases~

Governmental activities. The goverl1rnental activitie.s' increase in net assets of $10~9 n1illion accounted
for 100% of the total growth in net assets for the City this past year. TIle followil1g graph depicts the
major revenue sources of the City. It depicts very clearly the reliance on taxes and special assessments to
fund governmental activities.

Taxes and Special
Assessments

61.1%

Grants
8.80/0

IntergovernlTIental
0.1 G/o

Investment Incollle
2.50/0

Charges for Services
26.60/0

General government expellses (including City C0U11Cil, City Manager, City Attorney, City Clerk, City
Treasurer aIld Administrative Services) were 7% of the total cost of governmel1tal activities. Charges for
services offset 25% of the cost of providing these services.

Community development expenditures were 6.1 % of tIle total cost of goverlunental activities and cllarges
for services offset 690/0 of the cost of providing these services.

Public Safety expenses comprised the largest componel1t of governmel1tal activities ill terms of cost
41.2% this past year. Charges for services, operating and capital grants and contributions offset 12.2% of
the cost of providing these services.
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Public Works was the second largest governtuental activity representing 29.1 % of the total cost of
governmental activities. Charges for services and operating grants and COlltributions helped to offset 52%
of the cost of these activities. Capital grants from the Federal ·Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
and the State Office of Elnergen.cy Services (OES) related to the Bluebird Im1dslide repair offset the
remaining 60/0 cost of govermnentaI activity.

Recreatioll aJ1d social services expenditures were $4 luillion this past year, represel1ting 6.5% of the total.
Cll~·ges for services, operating grants alld contributions offset 51 % of tlle cost of providing these
serVices.

Sewer service operating costs were $5~8 million, represel1ting 9~4% of the total cost of governmental
activities. Charges for services, operating aIld capital gral1ts and contributions offset 1. 00% of expenses
includillg costs incurred for capitalized assets.

Interest and fiscal charges on long tenn debt, at $368 thousand, comprised .60/0 of the total cost of
govermnental activities with all costs offset by general tax revenues.

L-~------ . .. _, ..~""~~,,,,~, ... ,. .__ ._ ...n~",~,~~,Y- • ,. __~~~"._,._•• •• _•• .~_"""""",__,_u•• J

• Busin.ess~type activities. Business-type activities of the City had a decrease in net assets by $351
thousalld. The combined expenses of the City's busil1ess-type activity (the lTIunicipal transit system)
including costs incurred for capitalized assets were funded by charges for services and operating al1d
capital grants. The luajority of the decrease ill net assets consisted of l."'ransportation Development
Funds ill cOlnpliance with. "50% Limitation" rule~
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accou.nting to provide proper financial managemel1t of the City's
resources and to delTIOnstrate cOlnpliance with finance-related legal requirements~

Governmental Funds~ The focus of the City's goverruuental fUl1ds is to provid.e infofluation on near-terlll
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. StIch illformation is useful in assessing the City's
financi11g requirement In particlllar, unreserved fund balance n1ay serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30,2009, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $44.9 million, a
decrease of $1.6 million in cOlnparison with the prior year ~ Approxilnately 590/0 of this total amount
($26.3 Inillioll) constitutes llndesig11ated fund balance, which is available for spendiI1g at the
goven1ment's discretion~ The rClnainder of fund balance is reserved or desigl1ated to illdicate that it is 1l0t

available for new spendil1g because it l1as already been cOlnmitted: 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase
orders of the prior period, for il1ventory, long term receivables and other externally restricted balances
($16~5 million), aIld 2) for debt service requirements ($2.1 million)~

The General I~und is tIle chief operating fund of the City. As of June 30, 2009, the undesignated fund
balance of the General Fund was $20.4 million., while total fu.nd balance is $32.2 million. As a measure of
the Ge11eral F"\und's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved.~ ul1designated fund balance and
total fund balmlce to total fund expenditures.

The fund balance of the City's General Fund decreased by $1~6 million d.uring the fiscal year ending June
30, 2009. Reasons for sigl1ificant c11anges in the revenues and expenditures of the City~s' General Fllnd
from the prior year is as follows:

• R.evenues decreased $142 thousand over prior fiscal year~ While there was a $1.4 million increase
resulting freIn property taxes other anticipated taxes decreased~ Sales and lIse taxes decreased $597
tll0USaIld versus prior year while these taxes are depelldent on ecol10mic conditions aIld consumer
confidence; it is therefore not surprising that tllis revel1ue is seeing a decline. Witll tourism also
impacted. by the Cllrrent economic conditions the transient lodging taxes decreased $884 thOUSillld

versus prIor year ~

• Overall expenditures decreased $687 thou.sand compared witl1 prior year Inainly dtle to a decrease in
capital projects/expellditures of $3.6 luilliol1 over prior year.

The City has five other major funds: the Bluebird Landslide Fund, the Measure A fund, the Sewer Service
Fund, the Gelleral Obligatio!1 Bonds Debt Service Fund and tIle Capital Projects Fund.

The Bluebird Landslide Fund has a deficit fund balance of $2~1 million~ This d.eficit will be eliminated
pending a transfer from the Measure A fund in fiscal year 09-1 o~

The Measure A fund has a total fund balance of $8 million. This is from the accumulation of voter
approved temporary sales tax for the financing of the Bluebird Canyon La11dslide and other future
disasters. Of the $8 Inillion approximately $2 Inillion will be used to repay costs to the Bluebird
Landslide Fund.

The Sewer Service Fllnd had a total fW1d balance of $2~ 1. nlillioll, of which approximately 1000/0 was
reserved illld/or designated for projects. TIle net increase in the Sewer Service FUl1d balance during the
current year was $194 thousand~

1"'he General Obligation BOl1ds Debt Service Fund had a total fund balance of $2~1 million, all of Wllich
was reserved for future debt service payments~ The net increase in fund balance during the current year in
the Gel1eral Obligation BOllds Debt Service FUl1d is $2 thousal1d.
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The Capital Projects FU11d had a total fund balance of $2.9 million, of which approximately 100% was
reserved and/or designated for projects. The l1et increase in fund balance of $208 thousand was primarily
due to construction costs related to l1ew and ongoing utility districts undergrounding projects.

Enterprise Funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
governlnent-wide financial statelnel1ts, but il11TIOre detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Municipal Transit Fund at the el1d of the fiscal year amounted to $464
thollsand. The total decrease in net assets for the fund was $350 t110usand. Other factors concerning the
finances of tIlis fund have already been addressed in the disCllssiol1 of the City's business-type activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGET

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget of the General Fund totaled $21.5
million. and major items' can be briefly summarized as follows:

• $19~7 Inillion increase in th,e' budget for prior year carryover appropriations.
• $958 thousand increase in the budget for improvements to the sewer system capital improvements

programT
• $530 thousand increase for tIle purchase of credit card parl<ing meters.

Major deviatiollS between the final budget of the General Fund aJId its actual operating results were as
follows:

• Total reVCllues were slightly below the budgeted amount by $620 thousand mostly as a result of
decreases in sales and use taxes, transient lodgillg taxes, and plalTIling fees. Th.ere were several
revenlles that were over budget, such as propelty taxes, business license taxes, licenses and park and
recreatiol1 fees. .
Total expenditllres were under the budgeted amount by $13~8 milliol1, mostly as a result of capital
projects not yet completed at fiscal year end. No City departn1el1ts exceeded their approved
operating budgeted an10unts. Adlninistrative Services expel1ditures were over the approved budget,
but this is due to the gas tax exchange program with tIle Orange COUllty Transportation Authority.
The expenditures are offset by an operating trilllsfer [roln the Gas Tax Fund.

These deviations did not significantly affect the City's liquidity or ability to provide future goverllment
services.

Capital Assets - N'ct of Depreciation
Governlnental

Activities
Business~Type

Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Land $ 79~ 116,049 79,062,049

Bui idings and hllprovements 31,998,473 15,472~889

Office Equipment & Machinery 1,822,980 2,113,840

Furniture and Fixtures 963,869 826,160

Equipment M'achinery & Tools 1,297,175 519,473
Sewer Plant and Lines 38,165;896 38,339,010

Automotive Equipment 3,228,641 3,446,414

Infrastructure 157,471,402 155,034,450

Construction in Progress 9,961,910 14,999~811

Total $ 324,026,395 309,814,096

13

196~ 106
1~82S~058

8,277

677,256

2,706,697

196~ 106
1,887,857

13,160

959~196

3~056,319

79,312,1.55
33,823,531

1,831,257

963,869

1~297~175

38,165,896

3,905,897

157A71,402

9,961,910

326,733,092

79,258,155

17,360,746

2, 127~OOO
826,160
519,473

38~339,OIO

4,405~610

155~034~450

14,999,81 ]

312~870,415



I"fhe major change to the capital assets d.uring the year ended Ju.ne 30, 2009 were the addition of sewer
il11proven1ents, major street rehabilitation project, the community senior center, and city infrastructure.
Unexpended construction commitments as of year-end are discussed ill note 6 to tIle financial statelnents.
Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in the notes to t11e financial statements.

LONG-TERM DEBT

.Long-TerlTI :Liabilities
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

General Obligation Bonds $ 4,480,000 5~840,OOO 4~480,OOO 5,840,000
lnstallrnent Agreement 5,949,723 3,686,862 5,949,723 3~686,862

Net OPEB Liability 55,492 55~492

Capitalized Lease Obligations 290~OOO 290)000

Total $ 10,485,215 9,816,862 10,485,215 9,816,862

The City's total debt decreased by $668 thousand (7%) during the current fiscal year~ Standard & Poor's
has assigned an "AAA" rating for tIle City's general obligation debt. Additional information on the City's
long-term debt can be found in the notes to the accompanying financial statements~

Contacting the City's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the City's finances and to show the City's aCCOl111tability for the mOlley it receives~ If you
have questions abollt this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Office, at
tIle City of Lagllna Beac11, 505 Forest Avenlle, I..Iaguna Beach, California 92651.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
Statement of Net Assets

June 30~ 2009
(With Comparative Totals for June 30r 2008)

Governmental Business-type Totals
Activities Activities 2009 2008

Assets

Cash and investments (note 2) $ 60,221,488 1~419;485 61 t64O,973 45,984,577
Receivables:
Taxes 3 t892,328 345,840 4~238~168 4, 185~437
Accounts 256,300 11 ~588 267J888 715~256

Interest 111 J849 111 J849
Intergovernmental 987,873 987,873 18~341 ,726
Notes (note 22) 1,048,574 1,048,574 1,079,348
Other 3~310 3J310 9,383

Prepaids 291 t656 291 J6S6 220 t 395
Inventory 48~O90 48 t090 87,265
Property held for investment 2,032,253 2,032 t253 2,034 r253
Capital assets, not being depreciated (note 5) 89~O77~959 196,106 89,274,065 94,257,966
Capital assets, net of depreciation (note 5) 234 J 948,436 2,51 O~591 237l459~O27 218,612~449

Total assets 392,9201116 4J483~61 a 397 ~403,726 385,528,055

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,070,737 161,068 4,231 ~805 4,633 t 576

Interest payable 150,880 150~880 182~978

R'etentions payable 228,861 228 t 861 208~239

Due to other government agencies 266,287 266 t 287
Unearned revenue 63,771 1r 151,833 1,215~604 1,O35~876
Noncurrent liabilities (note 11):

Due within one year 5 1704,974 5,704,974 5 1841,311
Due in more than one year 12,673,777 12,673 J 777 11,735,215

Total liabilities 23,159 1287 1,312 t 901 24,472,188 231637~195

Net assets

Invested in capital assets~ net of related debt 318,076,672 2,706,697 320 J 783,369 308~893,553

Restricted for:
Capital projects 10~649J567 10 J 649,567 10~656,302

Other purposes 156,791 156,791 97,921
Unrestricted 40,877,799 464,012 41,341 r811 42~243t084

Total net assets $ 369,760,829 31170,709 372,931,538 361,890 t 860

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2009
(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30 r 2008)

Program Revenues
Total

Program
RevenuesExpenses

Charges for
Services

Operating Capital
Grants and Grants and

Contributions Contributions· -------
Governmental activrties:

General government
Community deve~opment

Public safety
Public works
Recreation and social services
Sewer service operating costs
Interest and fiscal charges

$ 4 r 375 l 200
3,768 r607

25 t 697 l 805
18~ 182~514

4~ 147~762

5,850,403
368 1191

11073 r481
2,587,192
2~257t248

6,563,355
11448!611
5 1766 1575

883~221

3 1031,127
636 1000
894~694

1f073~481
2,587,192
3~140,469

10,678,256
2,084,611
6,661 l 269

Total governmental activities 62~390l482

Business-type activities~

Municrpaf transft 2t318~378

Totat business-type activities 21318,378

Total primary government $ 64~708~860

323,660

6,464,919

1,083,774

9,496

1,093,270

26,225,278

1,3531033

1l 353,033

General revenues:
Taxes and special assessments
Intergovernmental tunrestrfcted
Rental income
Investment income
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Miscellaneous

Interfund transfers (note 14)

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year,
as restated (note 24)

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Totals
Activities Activities 2009 2008

(3~301 ,719) (3,301 ~719) (3 J 294,444)
(1 l 181,415) (1 ,181 J415) (787 J 342)

(22~557 t336) (22~557,336) (20,114 t 322)
(7 t504t258) (7?504t258) (6 r 280?371 )
(2 t063 t 151) (2,063 r 151) (1,324,607)

810 r866 810 t 866 2 t 033,435
(368 1 191) (368 r 191) (408,619)

(36~165,204) (36,165,204) (30,176,270)

(965 l 345) (965,345) (21 ~694)

(965,345) (965,345) (21,694)

(36 r 165r 204) (965 J 345) (37,130,549) (30, 197~964)

45,179?876 45r 179,876 46,129,130
91,958 91,958 117,757

387,562 387 r562 354,560
1,768,663 10,377 1 l 779 r040 1,966,133

302 j 572
300,339 1,764 302~103 194 1840

(602,400) 602,400

47 r 125 r 998 614 t 541 47,740,539 49,O64 l 992

10J 960 J 794 (350 t 804) 10}609,990 18~8671028

358,800,035 3 t 521,513 362,321,548 343 1023 r832

$ 369,760,829 3,170 j 709 372,931,538 361 t89O,860

See accompanying notes to basic financ~al statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund t which is required to be classified as a major fund, tS used to account for resources
traditionally associated with government which are not required legally or by sound financial
management to be accounted for in another fund.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues (other than expendable trusts and
major capital projects) and the related expendtures which are legally required to be accounted for in a
separate fund. The City of Laguna Beach has the following major Special Revenue Funds:

BLUEBIRD CANYON - This is used to account for costs incurred for emergency repairs and
permanent restoration for Bluebird Canyon related to a landslide that occurred in June of 2005.
Funding sources for this fund are from the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the California
Office of Emergency Services, and the CityJsMeasure A Fund.

MEASURE A FUND - This fund accounts for revenues received and expenditures made related to
the voter approved temporary safes tax increase of on-half of one percent (0.5%). The funds wHI be
used to finance the costs rncurred to remedy the damage jmposed by the June 2005 Bluebird Canyon
Landslide. The. temporary sales tax increase will be imposed for a period not to exceed six years.

SEWER SERVICE - The purpose of this fund is to account for sewer services provided to the
residents in the northern portion of the City. An annual assessment is placed on each affected
property owner's tax bill in an amount equal to the estimated cost for sewer service and
administration. The City contracts with a joint powers authority for treatment of the sewage.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Debt Servtce Funds are used to account for the accumuJat~onof resources for, and the payment off
rang-term debt principal and interest. The City of Laguna Beach has the following major Debt Servrce
Fund:

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS - This fund is used to account for the resources and payment of
general obligation bond principal and interest from a general obligation ad valorem tax levy.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds. The City of Laguna Beach
has the foJlowing major Capital Projects Fund:

CAPITAL PROJECTS - This fund is used to account for assessment d~strict utility undergrounding
projects which are funded by prcperty owners.

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

These funds constitute all other governmental funds that do not meet the criteria to be a major fundl
which are the 10% test of assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures for the governmental funds and
the 50/0 test of total assets, liabilities~ revenues or expenditures for the total governmental and
enterprise funds combined. These funds include other Special Revenue Funds of the City.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Governmenta' Fund Types

Balance Sheet

June 30 1 2009

(With Comparative Totafs For June 30 t 2008)

Special Revenue

Cash and investments
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Interest
Intergovernmental
Notes
Other

Due from other funds (note 4)
Prepaids
Inventory
Advances to other funds (note 4)
Property held for investment

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund~~alances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Retentions payable
Due to other fund s (note 4)
Due to other government agencies
Deferred revenue
Advances from other funds (note 4)

TotalliabiHties

Fund balances (deficit) (note 13):
Reserved
Unreserved:
Designated~ reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Caprtar projects funds

Undesignated~ reported in:
General fund
SpeciaJ revenue funds
Capital projects funds

Total fund batances (deficit)

Total liabilities and fund balances

General

$ 29,985,390

1,118~415

236~103
111 ~849

845,700
348 rOOO

3,310
14 t 508
44~120

48,090
2 t 800 t OOO

$ 35,555,485

$ 3,171 t 516
51 1409

163,771

3,386,696

4 t 868 t 096

6,889 t 627

20,411 J066

Bluebird
Landslide

5,000

12 t 609

1~841 t 198
266 J287

(2~115,094)

(2,115,094)

5,000

Measure A

5t663~953

587,143

8,092,294

8,092,294

See accompanying notes to basIc financial statements.
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Debt Service Capital Projects
General Nonmajor

Sewer Obligation Capitat Governmental Totals
Service Bonds Projects Funds 2009 2008

2,806~759 2,077 5990 2,979,458 2,998,287 46,511,837 30,636~156

99r991 43,438 23 t 053 1 t872 t 040 1,319,689
15,040 256,143 515,559

111,849
142,173 987,873 18,305,855

348,000 348,000
3,310 9,383

1r855,706 17,796,270
44,120
48~O90 87.265

1,OOO~OOO 3,800 JOOO
354 J 444 354,444 354,444

2 r906,750 2~121 ~428 2,994 1 498 4,517~957 56~ 193~412 69~372,621

620,355 3,695 74 t037 3,882,212 4t289~524

177,452 228,861 208,239
14,508 1,855,706 17,796,270

266,287
163,771 895 t 990

4,800,000 4 J 800,OOO

797 t807 3,695 4,888~545 11,196,837 23,190,023

990,875 2, 121 ~428 2~666t994 10,647,393 10t684,891

6,889,627 7,692,481
38 r950 25 7000 63,950 2,722,734

1,050,140 1,O50~140 2,378,055

20,411 t066 17 t 464,446
1 t 079 1 118 (3,062,582) 3,993~736 4,835,255

1,940~663 1,940,663 404,736

2 r 108,943 2~121,428 2t990~803 (370,588) 44,996,575 46,182,598

2,906,750 2,121 ~428 2,994~498 4 7517 t 9S7 56,193,412 69,372 f 621
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the BaJanee Sheet of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30 J 2009

Fund baJances of governmental funds $ 44,996,575

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are different because:

Capital assets net of depreciation have not been included as financial
resources in governmental fund activity.

Capital assets 413,392}990

Accumulated depreciation (92,587,373)

Long term debt from the General Long Term Debt Account Group that
have not been included in the governmental fund activity.

General obligation bonds (4,480,000)

Loan payable (5 t949 r723)

Accrued interest payable for the current portion of interest due on debt
service has not been reported in the governmental funds. (150 J880)

Receivable amounts that were earned in the audit period but not collected
within the availability period have not been reported in the governmental
funds. 2,120 l 288

fnternal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the
internal service funds must be added to the Statement of Net Assets. 12~418,952

Net assets of governmental activities $ 369 1760 1829

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
Governmental Fund Types

Statement of Revenues, Expendrtures and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended June 30~ 2009

(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 3D} 2008)
Special Revenue

Bluebird
General Landslide Measure A

Revenues:
Taxes $ 39,176,652 2,756 r385
Ljcenses and permits 1,141 l 821
Fines and penatties 1,807 l 176
Investment income 1~473l057 224,204
Rental 387~562

IntergovernmentaI 2 l 489,946 50,485

Charges for services 6 l 693 j 921
Parking meters~ lots and permits 4~715,786

DeveJopment tax 6*441
Other 1l149,534 20 1000

Total revenues 59~041 ,896 70~485 2~980,589

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 3}977 l 543
Communtty development 3~636l575

PubHc safety 25,004 1992
Public works 1O~741 t508
Recreation and sOGfal services 3 1991 1552
Sewer service operating costs

Capital expenditures 13~488,446 650,755

Debt service~

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures 60 T840 l 616 650,755

Excess (defidency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1 r798,720) (580 1270) 2,980 t 589

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 14) 1,122r843 333,799
Transfers out (note 14) (961 ~ 199)
Issuance of bond
Issuance of loan
Sale of land and equipment 7~223

Total other financing sources (uses) 168,867 333 1799

Net change in fund balances (1,629 j 853) (246 l 471) 2,980,589

Fund balances (deficit)t beginning of year, as restated (note 24) 33~798r642 (1 1868 l623) 5t 111,705

Fund balances (defjcit)~ end of year $ 32,168,789 ~'N115l094) 8)092,294

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Debt Service Capital Projects
General Nonmajor

Sewer Obligation Capital Governmental TotaJs
Service Bonds Projects Funds 2009 2008

1,558,660 1,377,225 44 l 868 l 922 45,061,416
1,141 ~821 1~024, 172
1,807,176 1~9681877

48 r875 112,594 49,249 1,907,979 2,172,846
387,562 354~560

5,828 848,754 1,497,160 4,892 l 173 24 r 860 r OO1
5,750 1132 12 l 444,O53 12 l 649 r 555

4,715,786 3,406~195
6 r441 152,469

893,972 93 r 019 82,148 2,238 r673 2,563,205

6 t 644,104 1,613,363 1,054,367 3,005,782 74,410,586 94,213 t 296

3,977,543 4,047,877
3,636,575 3,399 J 926

43 t 040 25,048,032 23,078r430
308 ,313 11 l 049,821 10 J 501 r 163

15 t OOO 41006~552 3t865~406

3,886 t 559 3 r886 r559 3,620,729
4,394,102 846~355 4~659,952 24,039,610 33,322,037

295,800 1,360,000 1,655,800 2,199,676
466 t401 251,355 717,756 441,432

9,042 t 862 1,611,355 846,355 5,026,305 78 r018 ,248 84 r 476 r676

(2 r398,758) 2,008 208~O12 (2 t 020,523) (3,607,662) 9,736 l 620

25 tOOO 17~927 1,499 f 569 1f857t367
(17,927) (1 1122,843) (2 t 101 t969) (2~4651695)

584 r 539
2 1 586,128 2,586,128 534,000

7,223 302,572

2 1593,201 (1 ~ 104,916) 1J 990 J 951 812,783

194 1443 2,008 208,012 (3,125 ,439) (1,616,711) 1O~549,403

1,914,500 2 J 119,420 2,782,791 2,754~851 46~613J286 35~633~195

2 l 108,943 2,121 ,428 2}990,803 (370,588) 44,996,575 46,182,598
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Governmental Funds

Reconciriation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30~ 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However~ in the
Statement of Activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capitar outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

Repayment of debt service principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Proceeds of debt is a revenue in the governmental funds~ but an increase in
long~term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Accrued interest for debt service. Thjs is the net change in accrued interest for the
current period.

Receivable amounts that were earned in the audit period but not collected within
the availability period have not been reported in the governmental funds.

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities to individual funds. The net revenues (expenses) of the internal service
funds must be added to the Statement of Net Assets.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to basjc financraJ statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner simHar to a private business enterprise - where the intent of the City Council is that the
costs (expenses f including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges~

The City of Laguna Beach has the following major Enterprise Fund:

MUNICIPAL TRANSIT FUND - This fund is used to account for the operations of the City~s

transit system. AU activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund l

including but not limited tOr administration, operations and maintenance~

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department or agency of a government to other departments or agencies on a cost
reimbursement basis.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Assets

June 30 1 2009
(With Comparative Totals. For June 30~ 2008)

Business Governmental
Type Activities

Municipal Internar Totals
Transit Service Funds 2009 2008

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and investments $ 1,419,485 13,709,651 151 129,1"36 15,348,421
Receivables:
Accounts 11 J588 157 11 t745 199,697
Taxes 345 1840 345 r 840 306 t 043

Prepaids 247 ,536 247,536 220 r395

Total current assets 1 l776 l913 131 957,344 15 T734 r 257 16~074t556

Noncurrent assets:

Advances to other funds (note 4) 1~OOOlOOO 11OOO t OOO
Notes receivable 700~574 700,574 731,348

Property held for investment 1r677~809 1 l 677J809 1,679,809

Capital assets, not being depreciated 196,106 196J106 196,106

Capital assets, net of depreciation 2~510,591 3,220~778 5,731 ,369 6 j 281 J113

Total noncurrent assets 2~706J697 6l599~161 9,305,858 8 j 888J376

Total assets . 4~483l610 20,556~505 25r040,115 24 l 962,932

Liabilities
Current Iiabi1itjes:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 138,978 188,525 327,503 324,248
Compensated absences due within one year 22,090 2r727,269 2 j 749,359 2,675 1281
Insurance claims payabre due within one year 1,552~705 1r552,705 1 l 535 l834
Unearned revenue 1,151 l833 1,151,833 163 1014

Total current liabilities 1,312,901 4 r468,499 5,781,400 4 ,698 l377

Non-current ljabiIities:
Compensated absences (note 11) 729r967 729,967 663,869
Insurance claims payable (note 7) 2 1883r595 2 j 883,595 2,904,484
Net OPES liability (note 1"2) 55 r492 55 J 492

Total noncurrent liabilities 3r669~054 3 t 669 1 054 3,568 1 353

Total liabilities 1,312~901 8~ 137,553 9,450 J454 8 t 266 t 730

Net assets
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets 2l706r697 3~220~778 5~927r475 6 ,477 t 219
Unrestricted 464,012 9 7 198J 174 9~662r186 10,218,983

Totat net assets $ 3l170,709 12 r418,952 15 l 589 r661 16,696,202

See accompanying notes to basic financ[al statements.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Year Ended June 30~ 2009

(With Comparative Tota's For Year Ended June 30 r 2008)

Busrness GovernmentaJ
Type Activities

Municipat lnternaJ TotaJs
Transit Service Funds 2009 2008

Operating revenues:
Passenger revenues $ 323 r660 323,660 348,146

Vehicle rentals 1~OO4,582 1l004~582 1,006~798

Emp'oyee benefits charges 743r998 743 ,998 788,197
Insurance charges 5,738 l 176 5~738,176 6,060,659

Tatar operating revenues 323~660 7t486~756 7 J 810 r416 8,203 ,800

Operating expenses~

Personnel services 1,189,454 1,189~454 1r133,142

Contractual services 166 1071 166 1071 152,382

Materials and supplies 348 r578 348 r 578 304 1477
Administratian 264,653 264,653 277 f 779
Employee benefits 689,274 689~274 1,023,166

Insurance claims and premiums 6~816J554 6,816~554 5l694 r 525
Depreciation 349 r622 699 1453 1,049,075 936 J 256
Other 11 ,408 11 ~408

Total operating expenses 2~318r378 8 r216 t 689 10,535,067 9,521,727

Operating income (Joss) (1 l 994 t 718) (729,933) (2,724,651 ) (1~317J927)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)~

lnvestment income 10,377 40,799 51 ,176 24,977
JntergovernmentaI 1~O19~877 1~O19l877 11116~5"10

Gain (loss) on disposal of capita! assets (67,310) (67 r 310) (21 l 572)
Other 1,764 707 2,471 4 1421

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,032 r018 (25,804) 1?OO6~214 1j 124r336

Income (Joss) before capital contributjons
and transfers (962,700) (755 t737) (1,718,437) (193,5"91 )

Capital contributions and transfers~

Transfers in (note 14) 602,400 602 1400 608,328

Capital grants 9)496 9,496 697,200

Total capital contributionsand transfers 611 ~896 611 1 896 1~305~528

Change in net assets (350,804) (755,737) (1 l106 l 541 ) 1 t 111,937

Net assets at beginning of year 3~521 ,513 13~174 r689 16r696~202 15,584t 265

Net assets at end of year $ 3,170 ,709 12,418,952 15 r 589,661 16~696,202

See accompanying notes to basic financiaf statements.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Proprieta ry Funds
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30 t 2009
(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30 1 2008)

Business Governmental
Type Activrties

Municipal Internal Totals
Transit Service Funds 2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 494,772 494 J 772 168 j589
Cash received from user departments 7 l 501,816 7,501,816 7r166 j895
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and services (842 J 971 ) (6,896 1 132) (7,739,103) (5,772 r620)

Cash payments to employees for services (1,186 1090) (495,892) (1,681 1982) (1,628 7221 )

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (1 15341289) 109,792 (1 ~424,497) (65,357)

Cash f10ws from noncapital financing activities:
Operating grant proceeds received 1,041,292 1,O41 l292 1,308,546
Cash received from other funds 602~400 602~400 624,266
Cash paid to other funds (1,000rOOO) (1 ,000,000)
Loan principal received 32,774 32 1774 12J 747

Net cash provided by (used for)
noncapital financin9 actrvities 1r643j692 (967 l 226) 676 r466 1,945~559

Cash flows from capital and related financing activrties:
Purchase of capitaI assets (1 ,014,242) (1,014 r242) (2 ,272 t 020)
Capital grant proceeds received 976 1899 976 r899 697~200

Payments of notes (515~OOO)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 514,913 514,913 216,497

Net cash provided by (used for)

capitaI and reIated financin9 activities 976,899 (499 l329) 477,570 (1 ~873l323)

Cash flows from investjng activities:
Interest received 101 377 40,799 51 T176 24 1977

Net cash provided by (used for)

~nvesting financin9 activities 10,377 40,799 51 ,176 24,977

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1~O96,679 (1 ,315,964) (219,285) 31 j856

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 322 1806 15~O25,615 15,348,421 15,316 1565

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,419l 48?_ 13 j709r651 15t 129t 136 15 t 348,421

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

(Continued)

Business Gavernmenta ~

Type Activities
Municipal Internal Totars

Transit Service Funds 2009 2008

Reconciriation of operatrng income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ (1 r994,718) (729 1933) (2,724 r651 ) (1 ,339,078)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operatin9 activities:

Depreciation 349,622 699,453 1r049r075 963,750
Miscellaneous income 1,764 707 2,471 4,000
Loss on disposai of capita' assets (67 ~310) (67,310)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 171 ,112 16,840 1871952 (193 r 522)
(Increase) decrease in taxes receivable (39 t 797) (39~797) (147,670)
(Increase) decrease in prepaids (27,141) (27 T141) (24 j 922)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued I~abi Jities (25,637) 27 r812 2 r175 (67,968)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
payable 2 1286 137r890 140 r 176 497,098
Increase (decrease) in net OPES liability 55~492 55 r492
Increase (decrease) in insurance claims payable 11079 (4,018) (2 J 939) 242,955

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ (1 ~534J289) 109t 792 (1 ~424l497) J65~357)

See accompanying notes to basic financ~al statements.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Agency Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabirities

June 30, 2009

(With Comparative Totals For June 30,2008)

Totals
2009 2008

Assets

Cash and investments (note 2) $ 5,439,110 5,625,760
Investments with fiscal agent (note 2) 1,416,536 1,596,859
Receivables:

Accounts 7~857.00 111,318
Intergovernmentat 45,312 48,720

Total assets $ 6,908!815 7,382,657

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 48~ 133 77,462
Deposits 2,437,487 2,845,427
Due to bondholders 4~423,195 4,459,768

Total liabilities $ 6,908,815 7,382,657

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Year Ended June 30, 2009

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Laguna Beach, California have been prepared in
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The following is a summary of the significant policies:

(a) Reporting Entity

The City of Laguna Beach was incorporated in 1927 under the General Laws of the
State of California. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of
government governed by a five member council and provides the following
services: pubUc safety (police, fire, paramedic~ marine safety~ and ambufance)~

hrghways and streets, parks a·nd recreation J public tmprovements~ planning and
zoning and general administrative service. The primary government financial
statements do not include the financial activities of the component units of the City~

(b) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The basic financial statements of the City are composed of the following:

• Government-wide financial statements
• Fund financial statements
• Notes to basic financial statements

Financial reporting is based upon all GASB pronouncements, as well as the FASB
Statements and Interpretations~ APB Opinions t and Accounting Research Bulletins
that were issued on or before November 30~ 1989 that do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting
government as a whole, except for its fiduciary activities. These statements include
separate columns for the governmental and business-type activit~es of the primary
government. Eliminations have been made in the Statement of Activities so that
certain allocated expenses are recorded only once (by the function to which they
were allocated). Howeverf general government expenses have not been allocated
as indirect expenses to the various functions of the City.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

Government-wide Financial Statements, (Continued)

Government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
economic resources measurement focus, all (both current and long-term) economic
resources and obligations of the reporting government are reported in the
government-wide financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues, expensesr

gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

Program revenues include charges for services, special assessments, and
payments made by parties outside of the reporting government's citizenry if that
money is restricted to a particular program~ Program revenues are netted with
program expenses in the statement of activities to present the net cost of each
program.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government­
wide financial statements, rather than reported as an expenditure. Proceeds of
long..term debt are recorded as a liability in the government-wide financial
statements t rather than as an other financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long­
term indebtedness of the reporting government are reported as a reduction of the
related liability, rather than as an expenditure.

Fund Financial Statements

The underlying accounting system of the City is organized and operated on the
basis of separate funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of setf­
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and
expenditures or expenses~ as appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they
are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Fund financial statements for the primary government's governmental, proprietary~

and fiduciary funds are presented after the government-wide financial statements.
These statements display information about the major fund individualJy and
nonmajor funds in the aggregate for governmental and enterprise funds. Fiduciary
statements include financial information for fiduciary funds and similar component
units. Fiduciary funds of the City primarily represent assets held by the City in a
custodial capacity for other individuals or organizations.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

Governmental Funds

In the fund financial statements~ governmental funds are presented using the
modified-accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they
become measurable and available as net current assets. Measurable means that
the amounts can be estimated, or otherwise determined. Available means that the
amounts were collected during the reporting period or soon enough thereafter to be
available to finance the expenditures accrued for the reporting period. The City
uses an availability period of 30 days for most of its material revenues, except for
property tax (60 days) and grants (180 days).

Sales taxes, property taxes, franchise taxes, gas taxes, motor vehicles in lieu,
transient occupancy taxes~ grants and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are aU considered to be 5usceptibJe to accrual and so have been recognrzed
as revenues of the current fiscal period to the extent normally collected within the
availability period~ Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
avaifabl.e where cash is received by the government

Revenue recognition is subject to the measurable and availability criteria for the
governmental funds in the fund financial statements. Exchange transactions are
recognized as revenues in the period in which they are earned (i.e~l the related
goods or services are provided). Locally imposed derived tax revenues are
recognized as revenues in the period in which the underlying exchange transaction
upon which they are based takes place. Imposed nonexchange transactions are
recognized as revenues in the period for which they were imposed~ If the period of
use is not specified, they are recognized as revenues when an enforceable legal
claim to the revenues arises or when they are received, whichever occurs first.
Government-mandated and voluntary nonexchange transactions are recognized as
revenues when aU applicable eligibility requirements have been met.

In the fund financial statements~ governmental funds are presented using the
current financial resources measurement focus. This means that only current
assets and current liabiJities are generally included on their balance sheets. The
reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered to be a measure of
Havailable spendable resources~" Governmental fund operating statements present
increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures
and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to
present a summa·ry of sources and uses of ~~available spendable resourcesr

, during
a period.

Non-current portions of long-term receivables due to governmental funds are
reported on their balance sheets in spite of their spending measurement focus.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

Governmental Funds, (Continued)

Special reporting treatments are used to indicate, however~ that they should not be
considered Havailable spendable resources," since they do not represent net
current assets4

Revenues, expenses, assets1 and liabilities resulting from nonexchange
transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB
Statement No. 33 which requires that local governments defer grant revenue that is
not received within the t'availability periodn

• In the past the industry practice for
grants was to recognize revenue in the fiscal year in which the related expense was
incurred£ Therefore recognition of governmental fund type revenues represented by
non-current receivables are deferred until they become current receivables. Non­
current portions of other long-term receivables are offset by fund balance reserve
accounts.

Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for
governmental fund types excludes amounts represented by noncurrent Itabilities.
Since "they do not affect net current assets~ such long-term amounts are not
recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities.

Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the
year that resources were expended~ rather than as fund assets. The proceeds of
long-term debt are recorded as other financing sources rather than as a fund
liability. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness are reported as fund
expenditures.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are combined in a fund 1 expenses
are considered to be paid first from restricted resources, and then from unrestricted
resources.

Proprietary and Fiduciary Funds

The Cityts enterprise funds and internal service funds are proprietary funds. In the
fund financial statements, the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are
earned and expenses are recognized when the related goods or services are
delivered. In the fund financial statements, proprietary funds are presented using
the economic resources measurement focus. Thrs means that aU assets and aU
liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included
on their balance sheets. Proprietary fund type operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies! (Continued)

Proprietary and Fiduciary Funds t (Continued)

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equar
values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, taxes~ and investment
earnings result from nonexchange transactions or ancilrary activrties. Amounts paid
to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the enterprise fund financial
statements J rather than reported as an expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are
recorded as a liability in the enterprise fund financial statements, rather than as an
other financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness of the
enterprise fund are reported as a reduction of the related liabiJity~ rather than as an
expenditure. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal fiabtlities) and do
not involve the recording of City revenues and expenses.

(c) Fund Classifications

The City of Laguna Beach reports the following major governmental funds~

General Fund - This is the primary operating fund of the City. It accounts for all
activities of the general government, except those required to be accounted for rn
another fund.

Bluebird Canyon - This is used to account for costs incurred for emergency repairs
and permanent restoration for Bluebird Canyon related to a landslide that occurred
in June of 2005. Funding sources for this fund are from the Federal Emergency
Management Agency~ the California Office of Emergency Services, and the Cityts
Measure A Fund.

Measure A Fund - This special revenue fund accounts for revenues received and
expenditures made related to the voter approved temporary sales tax increase of
on-haff of one percent (0.5%). The funds were used to finance the costs incurred
to remedy the damage imposed by the June 2005 Bluebird Canyon Landslide. The
temporary sales tax increase was imposed for a period of three years and expired
on June 30, 2009.

Sewer Service Fund - Thjs special revenue fund is used to account for sewer
services provided to the residents jn the northern portion of the City. An annual
assessment is placed on each affected property owner~s tax bin in an amount equal
to the estimated cost for sewer service and administration. The City contracts with
a joint powers authority for treatment of the sewage.

General Obligation Bonds Fund - This debt service fund is used to account for the
resources and payment of general obligation bond principal and interest from a
generaf obligation ad valorem tax levy.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

(c) Fund Classifications, (Continued)

Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for assessment district utifity
undergrounding projects which are funded by property owners.

The City of Laguna Beach reports the following major enterprise fund:

Municipal Transit Fund - This fund is used to account for the operations of the
City's transit system. AU activities necessary to provide such service are accounted
for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration, operations and
maintenance~

The City's fund structure also includes the follOWing fund types:

Internal Service Funds - The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the
City~s cost of providing employee benefits and various forms of insurance provided
to the City departments~ and the cost of maintaining and replacing the City's
vehicles.

Agency Funds - Various fiduciary funds are used to account for assets he1d by the
City as an agent for bondholders~ property owners, contractors, developers and
other individuals who have made miscellaneous deposits to the City.

(d) Encumbrances

The City utilizes an encumbrance system as a management control technique to
assist in controlling expenditures. Under this system, encumbrances of the
general, special revenue and capital projects funds - representing purchase orders J

contracts and other commitments - are reported as reservations of fund balances at
year-end. These reseNations of fund balances do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities and are reappropriated in the subsequent year.

(e) Cash and Investments

AU cash and investments other than that held by fiscal agents are either held in
savings accounts or in a City-wide investment pool. AccordinglY1 all cash and
investments in the proprietary fund types are considered cash and cash
equivalents.

lnvestments are reported in the accompanying balance sheet at fair value~ except
for nonparticipating investment contracts that are reported at cost because they are
not transferable and they have terms that are not affected by changes in market
interest rates.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies l (Continued)

(e) Cash and Investments, (Continued)

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment
income reported for that fiscal yeaL Investment income includes interest earnings,
changes in fair value, and any gains and losses realized upon the liquidation~

maturity, or sale of investments.

(f) Advances to Other Funds

Long-term interfund advances are recorded as a receivable and as reserved fund
balance by the advancrng governmental fund.

(9) Inventory

tnventories are valued at cost and are consumed using the first-in/first-out (FIFO)
method. The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

(h) Investments with Ftscal Agent

Certain proceeds from the issuance of debt, as well as certain resources set aside
for the payment of debt are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet
because their use is limited by appJicable debt agreements. Certain agency fund
resources are also restricted for improvement districts.

(i) Capital Assets

Capital assets (including infrastructure) are recorded at cost where historical
records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records
exist. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value at
the date of the contribution. Generally, capital asset purchases in excess of $1,000
are capitalized if they have an expected usefu1 life of three years or more.

Capital assets include public domain (infrastructure) general capital assets
consisting of certain improvements other than buildings, inctuding storm drains,
beach stairways, streets, sidewalks~ sewer line retinings, sewer lines and nuisance
water diversification units.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies} (Continued)

(i) Capital Assets, (Continued)

Capital assets used in operations are depreciated over their estimated usefut Jivesz
The City uses the straight-line method in the government-wide financial statements
for depreciating storm drains, beach stairways, streets, sidewalks, sewer line
relinings, sewer lines, nuisance water diversification units, buildings and
improvements~ office equipment and machines l furniture and fixtures, equipment
machinery and tools, and automotive equipment. Depreciation is charged as an
expense against operations and accumulated depreciation is reported on the
respective statement of net assets. The range of lives used for depreciation
purposes for each fixed asset class are as follows:

Storm drains
Beach stairways
Streets
Sidewalks
Sewer line relining
Sewer Jines
Nuisance water diversification units
Buildings and improvements
Office equjpment and machines
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment, machinery and toofs
Automotive equipment

(j) Compensated Absences

40 years
30 years
50 years
50 years
40 years
50 years
30 years
30 years

5 years
3 to 8 years
3 to 8 years

2 to 30 years

Accumurated unpaid vacation and sick leave amounts are currently funded and
recorded as expenditures in the individual funds. These amounts are recorded as
employee benefit charges and are accrued when incurred in the Insurance and
Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund.

(k) Net Assets

In the fund financial statements~ governmental funds report reservations of fund
balance for amounts not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by
outside parties for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent
tentative plans for future use of financial resources.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

(I) Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying
basic financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the
City~s financial position and operations~ However, comparative data has not been
presented in each of the statements since its inclusion would make the statements
unduly complex and difficult to understand~ Certain minor reclassifications of prior
year data have been made in order to enhance its comparability with current year
figures&

(2) Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2009 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as foJlows: .

Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and investments

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities:
Cash and investments
Investments with fiscal agent

Total cash and investments

$61 ,640,973

5t 439,110
17416,536

$68.496:61_9.

Cash and investments as of June 30~ 2009 consist of the following:

Cash on hand (petty cash and change funds)
Deposits with financial institutions
Investments

Total cash and investments

$ 23~018

787,589
67,686 1012

$68,496,619

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City's Investment
Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the
California Government Code (or the City's investment poficy~ where more restrictive). The
table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the Cityrs
investment policy~ where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk~ and
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(2) Cash and Investments, (Continued)

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City's Investment
Policy, (Continued)

concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds
held by the bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the
City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's
investment policy.

Authorized by Maximum Maximum
Investment Types Investment Maximum Percentage Investment

Authorized by State Law Policy Maturity* of Portfolio* In One Issuer*

Local City Bonds No 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations Yes 5 years None None
Federal Agency Securities Yes 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances Yes 180 days 40°Ji> 30%
Commercial Paper Yes 270 days 25% 10%

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Yes 5 years 25% None
Repurchase Agreements No 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements No 92 days 20% of base value None
Medium-Term Notes Yes 5 years 250/0 None
Mutual Funds Yes N/A 15% 10%

Money Market Mutual Funds No N/A 20% 100/0
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities No 5 years 200/0 None
Passbook savings accounts Yes N/A 25% None
County Pooled Investment Funds No N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund Yes N/A None None
JPA Pools (other investment pools) No N/A None None

* Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more
restrictive.

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
City's investment policy. The debt agreements permit the investments held by bond
trustee to be invested in investment types that are permitted by California Government
Code Section 53601 as illustrated in the previous table.
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(2) Cash and Investments, (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater
the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the
City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter
term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a
portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City~s investments (including
investments held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the City~s investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturing (in Months)

Investment Type
18 Months 19 to 24 25 to 60
Or Less Months Months

31,660,330

31,660,330
1,017,920

33,591,227

1,416 7535

36,025,682

1,416 1535

$67:686,012Total

Federal agency securities. $31 ~660,330

Medium term notes 1~017,920
State investment pool 33,591 t227
Held by bond fiscal agent:

Money market funds

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment wiU not fulfifJ its obligation to
the holder of the investment This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by
(where applicable) the California Government Code, the City~s investment policy, or debt
agreements, and the actual rating as of year end for each investment type.

Minimum Ratfng as of Year End
Legal Not

Investment Type Total Rating AAA Aa Rated

Federal agency securities $31,660,330 N/A 31,660,330
Medium term notes 1~O17,920 A 1,O17~920

State investment pool 33,591,227 N/A 33,591,227
Held by bond fiscal agent:

Money market funds 1,416,535 A 1,416 t535

Total $67 r686Jll2 32 r678,250 1.416 J 535 33.591 r227

45



CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(2) Cash and Investments, (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be
invested in anyone issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.
Investments in anyone issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds~ and
external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total City investments are as
follows:

Federal Farm Credit Bank
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Corporation

Custodial Credit Risk

investment Type

Federal agency securities
Federal agency securities

Federal agency securities

Reported Amount

$17,769 t 123
10,081 r890

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that} in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able
to recover collateral securities that are tn the possession of an outside party. The custodial
credit risk for rnvestments is the risk that~ in the event of the fai~ure of the counterparty
(e.g. r broker...dealer) to a transaction r a government will not be able to recover the value of
its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The
California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or
investments~ other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government
Code requires that a financial rnstitution secure deposits made by state or local
governmental units by ptedging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under state law (un~ess so waived by the governmental unit)~ The
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of
the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a
value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

For investments identified herein as held by bond trustee, the bond trustee selects the
investment under the terms of the applicable trust agreement, acquires the investment,
and holds the investment on behalf of the reporting government

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local City Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated
by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California~
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(2) Cash and Investments, (Continued)

The fair value of the City~s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial
statements at amounts based upon the City~s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by
LAIF for the entire LAIF portfoHo (in retation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF,
which are recorded on an amortized cost basjs.

(3) Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied
on July 1 and are payable in two installments on December 10 and April 10. The County
bjlls and collects the property taxes and remits them to the City in installments during the
year. City property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent that they result
in current receivables.

The County is permitted by State law (Proposrtion 13) to tevy taxes at 1% of fulr market
value (at time of purchase) and can increase the property tax value base no more than 2%
per year. The City receives a share of this basic levy proportionate to what it received jn
the 1976 to 1978 period.

(4) Interfund Activity

Intetiund balances at June 30, 2009 consisted of the following:

Receivable Fund

General Fund
Measure A

Total

Payable Fund

Non-Major Governmental Funds
NonOMMajor Governmental Funds

Amount

$ 14,508
1,841,198

$1,855,706

The interfund balance reflected above represents short-term borrowings of cash pend~ng

receipt of grant reimbursements and transfers from other funds.

Advances to Other Funds Advances From Other Funds Amount

General Fund Non-Major Governmental Funds
Internal Service Funds Non-Major Governmental Funds
Non-Major Governmental Funds Non-Major Governmental Funds

$2,800~OOO

1,OOOtOOO
1,000 7000

$4 7800 t OOO

The City has authorized the interfund advances listed above to be used for the operations
of the fund receiving the advances. The funds are expected to repaid without interest
within the next five years. The purpose of these advances is to fund a CityWide street
resurfacing project.
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(5) Capital Assets

Capitar asset activity for the year ended June 3D, 2009 was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Balance at
July 1, 2008 Additions

Deletions/ Balance at
Transfers June 30 7 2009

Capitat assets, not depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets,
not depreciated

$ 79,062,049
14,999,811

54,000 79~116,049

5,441,356 (10.479,257) 9,961,910

5,495,356 (10,479,257) 89 7077,959

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Office equipment &machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Equipment machinery & tools
Sewer plant and rines
Automotive equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets,
being d"epreciated

29~055,822 18,625,382
5 J 5161469 226 J250
1~097~949 160,756
3~082l406 938,145

65,640,351 1,735,835
7~446,989 613,847

195%571,718 2,898 7675

307 1411,704 25,198 7890

(16,238) 47,664,966
(160,678) 5,582,041

(12 l 973) 1~245, 732
(160~041) 3,860,510

67~376,186
(514,912) 7~545,924

___ 198,470,393

(864,842) 331,745.752

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (13,582,933) (2 1 099,470) 15,91 0 (15~666,493)

Office equipment & machinery (3,402,629) (511,246) 154,814 (3 J759,061)
Furniture and fixtures (271,789) (20}283) 10,209 (281,863)
Equipment, machinery & tools (2,562,933) (118,706) 118,304 (2~563,335)

Sewer plant and lines (27,301,341) (1 1908,949) (29~210,290)
Automotive equipment (4,000,575) (717,106) 400,398 (4,317~283)

Infrastructure (40 r537,268) (461,723) (40,998
7
991)

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated~ net

Governmental activrties
capital assets, net

(91,659,468) (5,837,483) 699,635 (96~797T316)

215,752 7236 19,361,407 (165,207) 234 1948 t436

~9,814.096 24,856,763 (10.644,464) 324.026,395
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Balance at Deletions! Batance at
July 1! 2008 Additions Transfers June 30, 2009

Business-type activities:

Capital assets 1 not depreciated:
Land $ 196,106 196,106

Total capital assets,
not depreciated 196,106 196,106

Cap1tal assets, -being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 1~950,672 1,950 J672
Office equipment and machinery 111,461 111,461
Furniture and fixtures 1,500 1,500
Equipment t machinery and tools 29~369 29,369
Automotive equipment 2,595 1411 2 1 595,411

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 4,688,413 4,688,413

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (62,815) (62,799) (125,614)
Office equipment and machinery (g8~301) (4~883) (103~ 184)
Furniture and fixtures (1 ,500) (1,500)
Equipment, machinery and tools (29)369) (29~369)

Automotive equipment (1 ,636,215) (281 7940) (1,918,155)

Total accumulated
depreciation (1 ,828 1 200) (349 1 622) (2 7 177,822)

Totai capital assets being
depreciated, net 2,860,213 (349,622) 2 j 510,591

Business-type capital assets, net $3,056 r319 (349,622) 2.706,697
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Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions of governmental activities in
the Statement of Activities:

General government
Community development
Public safety
Public works
Recreation and social services
Sewer service operating costs

Total

$ 281,390
80,668

295 1989
3,261,143

9,344
1,908,949

$5,837,483

Depreciation expense was charged to the following function of business-type activities as
follows:

Municipal Transit

(6) Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2009, budgeted funds committed for major capital projects included the
following:

Project
Budget

Expenditures Unexpended
To Date Balance

Community/Senior Center Construction
Lifeguard Headquarters and Restroom
So. Laguna Streetscape
Main Beach Boardwalk and Sidewalk
Zimmerman Storm Drain
Metal Storm Drain Repair
Animal Shetter Renovation
Heister Park
Village Entrance Project
Street Rehabilitation Projects Design
Shaw's Cove Reconstruction
Main Beach Life Station Rehabilitation
Laguna SOCWA Odor Control
Bruebird SOCWA Rehabilitation

50

$ 18r345,037
2,529}886
1,056,200

758,500
1,437,778
1~OOO,OOO

900,000
5,149,587

434,250
6,900,039
2,570,921

750,000
512,165

2,032,900

18~139,068
246,579
750,149
639,688

1l278~837

26,822
21,181

4~986,829

183,861
4,849,707
2,539~521

40,513
485,551

1 ~ 172~403

205,969
2,283,307

306 1051
118,812
158~941

973,178
878,819
162,758
250,389

2,050,332
31 ~400

709,487
26,614

860,497



CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(6) Construction Commitments, (Continued)

Project Expenditures Unexpended
Budget To Date Balance

Poplar/Lookout Undergrounding 1,154 J 233 1,009,310 144,923
Mar Vista Undergrounding 958,804 138,390 820,414
Cerritos Dunning Undergrounding 2,959,054 2,035,809 923,245

Total $49.449,354 38,544,218 10 J905,136

(7) Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft oft damage to, and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees~ and natural disasters.

The City retains the risk of loss for general/auto liability claims of up to $400,000 per
occurrence and workers 1 compensation claims of up to $300 t OOO per person per
occurrence~ Additionally, the City has retained risk of loss for employee dental insurance
claims~ The City is fuUy insured for medical claims. ' The City has established the
Insurance and Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund to account for and finance these
uninsured risks of loss, and liabilities are accrued when incurred l whether or not reported)
in this fund~ An esti-mate for incurred but not reported claims for dental coverage has not
been accrued because management believes the liability for incurred but not recorded
claims would be immaterial to the financial statements.
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(7) Risk Management, (Continued)

The City is also a member of the California Insurance Pool Authority (CfPA), a public entity
risk pool consisting of 12 member cities in Southern California, which was established to
pool resources 1 share risks, purchase excess insurance} and share costs for professional
risk management and claims administration. The coverage for general and auto liability
extends to $1 i600,000 per occurrence with a $20 t OOO,OOO annual aggregate. The
coverage for workers' compensation extends to a limit of $3,000,000. Member cities make
payments to CIPA based on underwriting estimates and may be assessed the difference
between funds availab1e and the $20,OOO~OOO annual aggregate in proportion to their
annual premium.

All funds of the City participate in the risk management program and make payments to the
Insurance and Employee Benefits Internal SeJVice Fund based on estimates of the
amounts needed to pay prior-year and current-year claims. The claims ltabHity of
$4,436,300 reported in the Insurance and Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund~ at
June 30~ 2009, is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 10r whtch requires that a liability for claims be reported if information
prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability
has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. Changes in the Insurance and Employee Benefits Internal Service
Fund's claims liabHity amounts in f;scal years 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

2009 2008

Beginning of year liability
Current year ctaims and changes in estimates
Claims payments

Insurance cfaims payable

$ 4,440 r318
2,048,593

(2 7°52,611 )

$ 4,436.300

4,197,363
1,469,960

(1,227,005)

4A-40.318

For the past three fiscal years, claims paid did not signifjcantly exceed the amount of
applicable insurance coverage.

(8) Improvement Districts

Bonds issued for improvement districts are liabilities of the property owners and are
secured by liens against the assessed property~ The City is not liable for repayment but is
onfy acting as an agent to expend the project funds on behalf of the property owners and to
collect principal and interest payments from property owners and remit such monies to the
bondholders. During the fiscal year ended June 30~ 2009, contributions from property
owners were $2,187,6191 At June 30, 2009, the unpaid principal assessments in the 1915
Bond Improvement Districts were $13 t 126 J 747.
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(9) Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457~ The plan, available to all City employees, permits
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years& The deferred compensation is not
available to employees until terminatton, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

Recently approved federal legislation requires that the Section 457 plan assets be held in
trust for employees~ This change, which was implemented in the 1999 fiscal year, means
that employee assets held in Section 457 plans are no longer the property of the City and
are no longer subject to claims of the City~s general creditors.

The City has no liabitity for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care that
would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. At June 30, 2009~ the deferred
compensation assets are heJd in a trust account and are not reftected on the City~s balance
sheet.

(10) Operating Lease

The City rents a community center under an operating lease. Total expenditures under this
lease were $37~446 for the year ended June 30, 2009. The minimum future rental
payments under this lease are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2010
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(11 ) Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of the changes in the principal balance of long-term liabilities
for the year ended June 30, 2009:

Balance at Balance at Due within Due beyond

July 1,2009 Additions Deletions June 30, 2009 one year one year

Governmental activitres:

General obligation bonds $ 5~840JOOO (1,360 rOOO) 4~480JOOO 15425~OOO 3~O551000

i-Bank installment

sale agreement 3,686,862 2,586,128 (323,267) 5,949,723 5,949~723

Net OPES riabHity 128,950 (73,458) 55,492 55~492

Capitalized lease obligations 290,000 (2901000)

Compensated absences 3,319,346 179~480 (41,590) 3,457,236 2,727 1269 729 J967
Insurance claims payable 4,440,318 2 j 048 t593 (2 1 052 t 611 ) 4 t436,300 1~552t705 2,883,595

General Obligation Bonds

On May 22, 2001 ~ the City issued $12,870,000 in General Obligation Bonds to refund its
1990 General Obligation Bonds. The principal is due annually on August 15 in amounts
ranging from $970,000 to $1 ~5651000f commencing in 2002 and ending in 2011. Interest is
payable semiannuarly on February 15 and August 15 of each year commencing February
15, 2002, at rates ranging from 4% to 5%. As of June 30, 2009, the outstanding balance is
$4 t 480,OOO.

The annual requrrements to amortize atl general obligation bonds outstanding are as
follows:

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Totals

2010 $1 J425,OOO 185~703 1l 610,703
2011 1,490,000 115,500 1,605,500
2012 1,565,000 39,125 1,6041125

Total $4.480.000 340.328 4.820.328
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(11 ) Long-Term Liabilities! (Continued)

I-Bank Installment Sale Agreement

On June 1 ~ 2004, the City entered into an I-Bank Installment Sate Agreement with the
California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (CIEDB). The agreement was
amended on August 1i 2005 to increase the maximum loan amount to $7 J OOO,OOO, which
will be used for the City~s Sewer Line Reconstruction, Line and Manhole Rehabilitation
Project The loan is secured by revenues generated by the Sewer Service Spec~af

Revenue Fund and bears interest at a rate of 2.730/0 per annum. As of June 30, 2009~

$5~949~723 of the $7,000,000 loan proceeds have been disbursed under the Joan
agreement, and accordingly interest is due semiannually on February 1 and August 1
commencing on August 1 J 20054 As stated in the agreement, the undisbursed funds of
$1,050,277 will be invested by the CIEDB, and the City will be credited for actual interest
earnings on any undisbursed funds up to 2.73%. As of June 30, 2009~ the outstanding
principat amount was $5,949~723.

(12) Post Employment Benefit Plan

Plan Description: The City administers a single-employer defined benefit plan which
provides medicat insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses in accordance
with various labor agreements~ The City does not pay any of the cost of health benefits r

however, eligible retirees and their spouses are permitted to participate in the City's
medical insurance plan until age 65. After age 65, Medicare automatically becomes the
primary provider of health coverage. The City's defined benefit plan becomes the
secondary provider. Eligible retirees will have no noticeabte change in health benefits or
plan administration; however, there is a reduction in the City's cost of health coverage as
the secondary provider.

City's Funding Policy: The contributron requirements of plan members and the City are
established and may be amended by City Council. The contribution required to be made
under City Council and labor agreement requirements is based on a pay-as-you-go basis
(i.e~l as medical insurance premiums become due). For fiscal year 2008-09, plan members
receiving benefits contributed $73,458 (100% of total premiums) through their required
contribution.

The City has not established a trust that is administered by the City for the purpose of
holding assets accumulated for plan benefits.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The Crty1s annual other postempJoyment
benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of
the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters
of GASB Statement No. 45£ The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
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(12) Post Employment Benefit Planl (Continued)

actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year~ the
amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Crty's net OPES obligation for
these benefits:

Annuat required contribution

Interest on net OPES obligation

Adjustments to annual required contributions

Annual OPEB cost (expense)

Contributions made (including premiums paid)

Increase in net OPES obligation

Net OPES obligation-beginning of year

Net OPES obligation-end of year

$128,950

128,950

(73,458)

55,492

$ 55.492

The City's annual OPES cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan~

and the net OPES obligation for 2009 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage of
Annual Net

Fiscal Annual OPES Cost OPES
Year OPES Cost Contributed Obligation

6/30/07 N/A N/A N/A
6/30/08 N/A N/A N/A
6/30/09 $128 t 950 43% $55,492
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(12) Post Employment Benefit Plan, (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2008,
was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)
Covered payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

$ 1,047,047

$ 1,047,047
0%

$ 19,511,621
5.4%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment~ mortality~ and the healthcare cost
trend~ Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are SUbject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future~ The
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following
the notes to the financial statements t presents multi-year trend information about whether
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for the benefits~

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the empioyer and
the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between empioyer and plan members
to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatHtty in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial assets l consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations is the Projected Unit
Credit with Service Pro-Rate method. The actuarial assumptions included a 5 percent
investment rate of return, which is the assumed rate of the expected long-term investment
returns on plan assets caJcurated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation
date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8 percent initially, reduced by decrements
of 1 percent per year to an ultimate rate of 5 percent after the third year. The UAAL is
being amortized as a leveJ percentage of projected payroll over 30 years. It is assumed the
City~s payroH win increase 3 percent per year.
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(12) Post Employment Benefit Plant (Continued)

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a

Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage of
Actuarial Value of (AAL)- AAL Funded Covered Coverd
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date @l lQ} (b-a) (alb) {Q} (ba)!c)

6/30106 N/A NA N/A N/A N/A N/A
6/30/07 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
6/30/08 $0 $1 ~O47,O47 $1 ~047r047 0% $19 t 551 ,624 5.4%

(13) Fund Balances (Deficit)

Reserved fund balances and fund balances (deficit) available for new appropriations at
June 30, 2009 were as follows:

Nonmajor
BlueBird Sewer Debt CapitaJ Governmen-

Genera\ Canyon Measure A Service Serv~ce Projects tat Funds Totals

Reserved for:
Inventory $ 48,090 48,090
Prepaids 44~120 44 j 120
Advances to other

funds 2,800,000 1~OOOjOOO 3,800J OOO
Notes receivable 348 rOOO 348,000
Encumbrancas 1,523,024 990,875 1,312,550 3,826 j 449
Solid waste 104,862 104,862
Property heId for

investment 354,444 354,444
Debt service 2,121.428 2,121,428

Subtotal 4<868f096 990,875 2.121,428 2<666,994 10r647,393

Unraserved:
Designated:

ReapPfopriations
for continuing
projects 6 l 889 j 627 38 l9S0 1r050l140 25,000 8,OO3 l 717

Undesignated 20,411.066 (2,115.094) 8,092.294 11 0791 118 1r94O,663 (3,062,582) 26,345.465

Tota! $32 168789 (2 115 09.11 8Jl9U9A 2 108943 2.121142£ 2 990803 etmS88) 44 996.27.2

* Includes General~ Open Space J Capital Improvement, Parking Authority~ Parking In­
Lieu, Park In-Lieu, Art In-Lieu r Drainage t and Housing In-Lieu Funds.
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(13) Fund Balances (Deficit), (Continued)

Reserves for inventory, prepaids, notes receivables 1 solid waste J and property held for
investment are established to show that certain assets are already committed to other
purposes and are not available for discretionary expenditures.

Reserves for encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for
services and undelivered goods.

Reserves for debt service represent re·sources legally restricted to the payment of long­
term debt principal and interest maturing in future years.

Unreserved...undesignated represents the fund balance remaining after reduction for
reserved and designated fund balancesa

(14) lnterfund Transfers

Interfund transfers at June 30, 2009 consisted of the following:

Transfers Out
Nonmajor

Sewer Governmental
General Fund Service Fund Funds

Transfers In
General Fund
Sewer Service Fund
Municipal Transit Fund
Nonmajor Governmental

Funds

$
25,000

602,400

333,799

$961,199

17,.927

17 1927

1,122,843
25,000

602,400

351,726

2,101.969

Transfers are used to: (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them~ (2) reimburse
funds for expenditures jncurred f and (3) use unrestricted revenues cotlected in the general
fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizaUons.
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(15) Sewage Treatment Facilities, (Continued)

In March 1972, the City, five water districts and one sanitation district entered into a joint
exercise of powers agreement which created the South Orange County Wastewater
Authority (SOCWA)t a public corporation£ SOCWA was formed to develop a total water
management program for its members' consolidated service areas~ SpecificaltYl SOCWA
is to provide for construction, maintenance and operation of a regional wastewater
transmission, treatment and disposal system~ This system consists of an interceptor
system, pumping stations, wastewater treatment plants and an ocean outfall~

The governing board is comprised of one member from each participating agency and is
responsible for the selection of management and for the budgeting and financial
management of the Agency. As of June 30, 2008 (the most recent information available),
SOCWA had total assets of $49 t 431 ,506, total liabilities of $3,458~390, and total equity of
$45 J973,116.

The City's share of ownership varies depending upon the purchased capacities of each
subsystem. Each member is responsible for its share of maintenance and operations
costs proportional to its purchased capacity which is billed to each member by SOCWA.
Sewer service charges are assessed to fund these and other operating costs. The City~s

share of costs to operate the sewage treatment facilities for fiscal year 2009 was
$2l539,580~ A separate financial report may be obtained from the South Orange County
Wastewater Authority office.

(16) Pension Plan (Defined Benefit)

Plan Description

The City of Laguna Beach contributes to the California Public Empioyees Retirement
System (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension
plan. PERS provides retirement, disability benefits, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public entities within the State of California. PERS issues a publicfy available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for the cost sharing plans that are administered by PERS. Copies of PERS~ annual
financial report may be obtained by writing to 400 up~' Street~ Sacramento, California
95814.

Funding Policy

MisceHaneous and safety participants are required to contribute 7% and 9%, respectively,
of their annual covered salary. The City makes the contributions required of City
empr"oyees on their behalf and for their account. Benefit provisions and aU other
requirements are established by state statute and city contract wrth employee bargaining
groups.
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(16) Pension Plan (Defined Benefit), (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost

For each of the fiscal years shown below, the City has contributed at the actuarially
determined rate provided by PERS' actuaries. Under GASB 27, an employer reports an
annual pension cost (APe) equal to the annual required contribution (ARC) plus an
adjustment for the cumulative difference between the APe and the employer's actual plan
contributions for the year. The cumulative difference is caned the net pension obligation
(NPO). The ARC for the period July 1~ 2008 to June 30,2009 has been determined by an
actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30 t 2006. The City's covered payroll for PERS
was $20~755,650 for the year ended June 30, 2009, while the City's total payroU for aU
employees was $23,511 ~401 during the same period. In order to calculate the dollar value
of the ARC for inclusion in financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2009, the
contribution rate is multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that were paid during the
period from July 1,2008 to June 30 r 2009.

Three-Year Trend Information

Annual Pension (Safety)

Fiscal Year

6/30/07
6/30/08
6/30109

Employer
Contribution

Rate

16.151 %

16.8060/0
17.3300/0

Employer
Contribution

1,668,833
1J924~661
1,438,071

Percentage
Contributed

10QOh
100%

100%

Net
Pension

ObiigaUon

Annual Pension (Miscellaneous)

Emptoyer Net
Contribution Employer Percentage Pension

Fiscal Year Rate Contribution Contributed Obligation

6/30/07 9.135% 886,762 1000/0
6/30/08 9.343% 1,014,350 100%
6/30/09 9.048% 1,056,904 1000lb
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(17) Pension Plan (Defined Benefit), (Continued)

Annual Pension (Fire)

Employer Net
Contribution Employer Percentage Pension

Fiscal Year Rate Contribution Contributed Obligation

6/30/07 16.1990/0 971,877 1000/0
6/30/08 29.417% 1l 126,727 1000/0
6/30109 29.940% 1~204l013 1000

/0

Pension Plan (Defined Contribution)

The City provides pension benefits for all of its part-time employees through an agent
multiple employer defined contribution plan. In a defined contribution plan, benefits
depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnrngs. Employees
are required to participate from the date of employment The City requires the employee to
contribute 3.75% of the 7.5% required by the Federal Government. The City's contribution
for each employee and interest allocated to the employeeJs account are fUlly vested
immediately.

The City)s total payroll in fisca~ year 2009 was $24~895,900 and covered payroll was
$1 l 909 J 125. Both the City and covered employees made the required 3.750/0 contributions
amounting to $71 ~592 from each source l or $143 t 184 in total. Vested funds can be
withdrawn upon termination or retirement from the Cty.

(18) Fund Deficits

The following fund reported a deficit in fund balance as ofJune 30, 2009:

Deficit Batance
Special Revenue Funds:

Bluebird Landslide
Gas Tax

($2 l 115l 094)
(3~058l293)

These deficits will be remedied as grants and interfund borrowings are billed and received.
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(19) Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

Expenditures for the year ended June 30~ 2009 exceeded appropriations in the following
funds:

Bluebird Landslide Special Revenue
Fund

Final
Budget

$ 650~755

Excess over
Appropriations

(650,755)

Expenditures for the Bluebird Landslide Special Revenue fund will be reimbursed primarily
by grants from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and the State Office
of Emergency Servrces (OES).

(20) Transportation Development Act

In accordance with the requirement of the Transportation Development Act, the following
information is presented:

TDA 50% Limitation:

Total Operating Costs
50% Limitation (Line 1x50%)

TDA Financial Need Limitation:

Total Operating Costs
Depreciation Current
OCTA Operatrng Assistance
Passenger Revenues
Taxi Voucher Program
Park and Ride

Financial Need

Lesser of fJFinancial NeedU or H50% LimitationU

63

(349~622)

(63~196)
(196,070)

(8 t 369)
(119 J221)

$2,318 r378
1 ~ 1591189

(736 t478)

$1 ~581 r900

$1 1 159,189
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(21) Significant Operating Lease for Which the City is Lessor

For the period of October 1, 2001 through September 30 t 2041, the City of Laguna Beach
has leased to the Festival of Arts of Laguna Beach (an unrelated non-profit organization)
parcels of land and related structures associated with the operation of certain community
events relating to the arts. At all times throughout the term of this operating lease and at
the termination of the lease, title to these assets remains with the City of Laguna Beach.
The rental payment to be received by the City wiH be an amount equal to 3.50/0 of certain
gross revenues relating to the use of the property without limitation (no maximum rental
payment). In addition, the Festival of Arts of Laguna Beach will pay 60/0 of the gross
revenues described above, which the City wirl deposit into a capital improvement fund. The
money in the capital improvement fund is to be used solely for capital improvements to the
premises being rented and debt associated with such improvements, and insurance
premiums~ All rentals are considered to be contingent upon the amount of gross revenues
and the lease does not provide for minimum rental payments to be made to the City. The
carrying amount of the land involved in this lease is $405 f 040. The carrying amount of the
structures and improvements being leased is $1,022,667~ These assets are recorded in
the capital assets of the Cjiy of Laguna Beach. The land was originaHy donated to the City
under the condition that if it is used for other than park and/or arts-related purposes, then
title to the land would revert to the donor. Rental income associated with this lease has
been recognized in the accompanying financial statements in the amount of $229,382~

(22) Housing Program to Enhance Emergency Response

In order to enhance the ability of key personnel to respond to emergency situations within
the community, the City is providing assistance for those employees to reside in close
proximity to their response area. The accompanying financial statements reflect the Cityls
investment in five such properties in the amount of $2~032,252 and two loans to these
respective employees. As of June 30, 2009 t the outstanding balance of the loans was
$7001574.

(23) Grants and Allocations

The City is a recipient of State and Federal grants, which are governed by laws and
regulations established by the granting agencies~ Costs charged to the respective grant
programs are subject to review and adjustment by the granting agencies£ Certain requests
relating to this funding are pending approval by the funding agency.
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(24) Prior Period Ad[ustment

During the fiscal year ended June 30~ 2009~ fund balance/net assets was restated to adjust
unearned revenue as of June 30, 2008.

Governmental Funds

General Fund

Fund balance at beginning of yearl

as previously restated

Adjustment to remove unearned
revenue balance as of June 3D l

2008.

Fund balance at beginning of year1

as restated $33,798,642

Government Wide Statements

Governmentaf
Activities

Net assets at beginning of year~ as
previously reported

Adjustment to remove unearned
revenue balance as of June 30~

2008.

Net assets at beginning of year~ as
restated

430,688
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(25) Subsequent Events

On January 29~ 2010, the City made a payment to the California PERS pension system
in the amount of $9}949 t 879 to payoff the City 1s side fund obligation associated with the
CityJs pension plan. This payment will create savings to the City with respect to future
PERS contributions. This payment made by the General Fund of the City was financed
by interfund borrowing by the General Fund from other fundsof the City_
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General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Batances -

BUdget and Actual

Year Ended June 30 l 2009

(With Comparative Tota!s For Year Ended June 30 r 2008)

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts PositiveJ 2008

Original Final Actuaf (Negative) Actua~

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes $ 23,783r OOO 23,783 j OOO 24l 588 j 361 805 j 361 23,140,071
Sales and use taxes 4,920,000 4 t 920}OOO 4t286,577 (633,423) 4,883,080
Transient ladgin9 taxes 8t 700tOOO 8~700tOOO 7l 856,964 (843 l 036) 8,741,412
Franchise taxes 1, 150,000 1,150,000 1,187,477 37 t477 1j 164,427
Business license taxes 790,000 790,000 901 ~ 142 111 ~ 142 823,203
Rea! property transfer taxes 350 1 000 350tOOO 356 1 131 6,131 413]480

Total taxes 39 1693tOOO 39,693~OOO 39 1 176,652 (516 5 348) 39,165,673

Licenses and perm its:
Construction permits 1,109,000 1l 109}OOO 1,118,671 91671 1~OO4~792
Other 21,000 21,000 23~150 2,150 19,380

Total Ijcenses and perm its 11 130!OOO 1,130,000 1,141 t821 11,821 1,024 1 172

Fines and penaiUes
Vehicle codes 1,730~OOO 1~730tOOO 1)770~721 40t721 1,893,607
Other 63,000 63,000 36,455 (26,545) 42,840

Total fines and penalties 1~793~OOO 1,793,000 1~807,176 14,176 1t936t447

Investment income 1~300=OOO 1 l 300 l 000 1,473=057 173,057 1t 743 t443

Rental income 337,000 356 r500 387 j 562 31 1062 3541560

Intergovernmentat 449,000 2]331,170 2,489,946 158}776 2t355~772

Charges for services:
Planning fees 1,453r OOO 1,453 rOOO 1t215,657 (237,343) 1,412j 292
Building department fees 257,000 257,000 292,626 35,626 249,397
Refuse service charges 1t767 l 000 1 j 767,OOO 1~784}352 171 352 1,759,656
Medical fees 83 1000 83,000 93~498 10,498 89t025
Parks and recreation fees 1,228,000 1,228 rOOO 1,367,012 139t012 1t32O,445
Parking fees 176]831
Other 2 l 115 l 000 2,115,000 1,940,776 (174,224) 2,011,836

Tota~ charges for servlces 6l 903tOOO 6t903,000 6 l 693 j 921 (209 l 079) 7,019,482

Parking meters, lots and perm its 4r756~OOO 4,756 j OOO 4}715,786 (40,214) 3,406,195

DeveJopment tax~

Buiid tng construction tax 1j 861 1j 861 148,416
Other 4,580 4 j 580 4,053

Total development tax 6~441 6]441 152~469
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual

(C0 ntinued)
Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive/ 2008
Original Finaj Actual (Negative) Actual

Other:
Reimbursed expenditures 204,000 207,000 407 1305 200 j305 349 tOO8
Other 517 tOOO 1,193 1000 742 f 229 (450~771) 1,381,831

Total other 721 ~OOO 1,400 l 000 1l149,534 (250 l 466) 1,730,839

Totar revenues 57 j 082 t OOO 59,662 j 670 59,041,896 (620f 774) 58,889,052

Expenditures:
General government:

City Council 70,500 85,500 76,702 8
1
798 63,042

City Manager 739,450 782,460 778~259 4,201 733f 998

City Clerk 348,350 348,675 312,036 36,639 268 t904

City Treasurer 129,100 129 t 425 1291690 (265) 120~250

City Attarney 590 1000 740 1000 542 t 334 197,666 542,610

Administrative services 2l129l 200 2 1 134,240 2} 138t522 (4,282) 2}319 l 073

Tota~ general government 4)006,600 4,220 l 300 3,977,543 242~757 4,047,877

Community development 3,709}OOO 3,980~725 3 j 636l575 344 1 150 3,399,926

Publie safety:
Pol ice protection 12~588,500 13l 079}995 12,535l 819 544 1 176 11 r473j248
Fjre protection 9,597,900 9,978)800 9,418,916 559,884 8,642,584
Mari ne safety 2t218~300 2l 344,300 2,286,994 57,306 2,120,848
Parking enforcement 831 t700 831)700 763 j 263 68,437 823,024

Tota! public safety 25,236 l 400 26 t 234 j 795 25 j OO4 j992 1~229,803 23,O59 l 704

Pubfic works 10l 758r 800 12l 048,O73 10,741,508 1l306 f 565 10T224t468

Recreation and soda} services 4,214~600 4,771 1711 3,991,552 780,159 3,850$406

Capital expenditures 5t260l700 23,462 t 123 13,488 t 446 9 T973 j 677 16t 9441897

Tata1expenditures 53 j 186 j 100 74,717~727 60,840,616 13t877 1 111 61l527~278

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 3,895 1900 (15 l 055,O57) (1l798~720) 13l 256,337 (2 r638~226)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 467,000 1,122,843 655)843 4,037 1 080

Tfansfers 0 ut (3l283 l 700) (3~419j700) (961}199) 2,458,501 (4,226 t408)
Sale of land and equipment 353 1000 2l314~828 7,223 (2l307 r605) 302,572

Tota1other financin9 sources (uses) (2,930 F700) (637~872) 168,867 806t739 113,244

Net change in fund balances 965 j 200 (15,692 1929) (1 ~629t853) 14,063,076 (2 T524 1982)

Fund balances, beginning of yearl as restated 33~798l642 33 j 798}642 33l798~642 35l892 t 936

Fund balances~ end of year $ 34,763,842 18,105,713 32: 168 j 789 14,063,076 33,367,954
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Major Speciat Revenue Fund

Bluebird LandsHde Fund

ScheduJe of Revenues~ Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2009

(With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2008)

Variance with
Finaf Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positivel 2008
Original Final Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
lntergovernmentat $ 50~485 50~485 20,O34~966

Other 20,000 20,000 20,000

Total revenues 70~485 70 r 485 20 1054,966

Expenditures:
Capital expenditures 650 j 755 (650,755) 7,619)674

Tatar expenditures 650,755 (650~755) 7)619,674

Excess (deficjency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (580,270) (580)270) 12,435,292

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 333,799 333,799
Transfers out (100,000)

Total other financing sources (uses) 333 1 799 333 r 799 (100r OGO)

Net change in fund balances (246 l 471 ) (246,471 ) 121335,292

Fund batances, beginning of year (1,868 l 623) (1 1868,623) (1 ~868,623) (14,203}915)

Fund balances (deficit)~ end of year $ (1 ~868t623) (1~868~623) (2, 115~O94) (24~,471) (1l868~~
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Major Speciaf Revenue Fund

Measure A Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2009

(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30~ 2008)

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive/

Original Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
Taxes $ 2 t 300,OOO 2l 300,OOO 2,756,385 456,385
Investment income 200 1000 200 rOOO 224 1204 24,204

Total revenues 2}500,OOO 2,500~OOO 2 J980,589 480,589

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures 2l500~OOO 2,500,000 2~9801589 480,589

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances 2 1500,000 2 F500,OOO 2 1980,589 480,589

Fund balances, beginning of year 5,111 1705 5,111,705 5,111,705

Fund balances, end of year $ 7,611 l 705 $ 7,611 l 705 8,092,294 480~589
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2008
Actual

2~947,477

160,221

3,107,698

3 l 207,698

1 1904,007

Sl111,705
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Major Speciat Revenue Fund

Sewer Services Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30r 2009

(With Comparatjve Totals For Year Ended June 30, 2008)

Revenues~

investment income
Intergovernmenta~

Charges for services
Other

Tataf revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Sewer service operating costs
Capital expenditures

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (defrcjency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Issuance of a loan

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change jn fund balances

Fund baiances J beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive! 2008
Orjginal Final Actual (Negative) Actual

$ 1r695
539,510 (5391510) 866 J OOO

5j 715 J OOO 5,715,000 5,750 j 132 35 t 132 5,630,073
53~OOO 266~OOO 893 t 972 627,972 201 J 397

5,768 j OOO 6,520,510 6,644,104 123,594 6,699 r 165

3 t 946,300 3~956,990 3,886,559 70~431 3,620r729
2,375,000 8~441,700 4,394,102 4,047)598 4,278,547

300r OOO 300 j OOO 295,800 4,200 889,676
641 JOOO 641 rOOD 466,401 174 J 599 132r426

7,262,300 13,339,690 9!O42,862 4r296,828 8,921 1 378

(1 ~494,300) (6~819, 180) (2 ~ 3981758) 4 l 420 J 422 (2~222t213)

25,000 25~OOO

(17,927) (171927)
2,000,000 4~692~148 2t586~128 (2r 106~O20) 534,000

2,000,000 4,692 r 148 2,593,201 (2,098,947) 534 1000

505,700 (2,127,032) 194,443 2,321,475 (1 r688,213)

1,914~500 1r914~500 1,914~500 3 t 602,713

$ 2 r 420,200 (212,532) 2 r 108,943 2~321 ,475 1,914,500
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Note to Required Supplementary Information

Year Ended June 30 J 2009

(1) Budgetary Policy and Control

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general and special revenue
funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end~ except for encumbered
amounts and capital expenditures which are reappropriated in the next year's budget
until such time as the project is completed or terminated.

The City is required by ordinance to adopt an annual budget on or before June 30 for the
ensuing fiscal year. From the effective date of the budget, the amounts stated therein as
proposed expenditures become appropriations to the various City departments. The City
Council may amend the budget by motion during the fiscal year. The City Manager may
transfer funds from one object or purpose to another within the same department,
excluding capital outlay. Actual expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at
the department level within the General Fund and at the fund level for special revenue~

debt service, and capital projects funds; therefore~ the legal level of budgetary control is
at the department level.

Budget information is presented for the general and certain special revenue fund types~

Budgeted revenue amounts represent the original budget modified by Council ...authorized
adjustments during the year which were contingent upon new or additional revenue
sources. Budgeted expenditures amount represent original appropriations adjusted for
supp'emental appropriations during the year. Supplemental appropriations include
carryover appropriations from the prior year. Supplemental budgetary appropriations of
$21,531,627 were made in the General Fund and $16,406~100 was made ~n the special
revenue l capital projects, and debt servicefunds during the year.
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for financial resources applicable to the general
government operations of the City of Laguna Beach 1 whjch are not required to be accounted for
in another fund. This includes some operations that are budgeted as separate operating funds.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
General Fund

Consolidating Balance Sheet by Sub-Fund
June 30 1 2009

(With Comparative Totafs for June 30 j 2008)

Capita'
General Open Space tmprovement

Assets

Cash and investments $ 15 t 0381975 318~399 9,567l 667
Receivables:
Taxes 1r0451648 72,767
Accounts 70,493 100,493
Interest 111 t849
Intergovernmental 25,537 820~ 163
Notes
Other 3,310

Due from other funds 14,508
Prepaids 44 1120
tnventory 48,090

Advances to other funds 2,800,000

Total assets $ 16~402,530 318~399 13,361 ~O90

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabi ~ ities:
Accounts payabre and accrued liabilities $ 11783,557 1J 182,100
Retentions payable 51 j 409

Deferred revenue 63,771 100 r OOO

Total liabilities 1~847,328 1t333 1509

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Inventory 48 r090
Prepaids 44 r 120
Notes receivable
Encumbrances 297~284 855 1340
Solid waste 1041862
Advances to other funds 2r 800,OOO

Unreserved:
Designated for:
Reappropriations for continujng projects 1l693~180 51065~347

Undesignated 12~367~666 3181399 31306 r 894

Total fund balances 14,555j 202 318 r 399 12,027r581

Total HabiHties and fund balances $ 16l 402,530 318,399 13~361 ,090
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Parking Parking Park Art Housing Totals
Authority In-Lieu In-Lieu In-Lieu Drainage In-Lreu 2009 2008

4,687 1113 46,479 7,806 147,250 25,993 145,708 29 j 985,390 16,598,765

1l 118 t 415 993 f447
65~117 236)103 255~566

111 J 849
845~700 1,465,438

348~OOO 348,000 348 t OOO
3,310 9)383

14 r508 17,796 t 270
44,120
48,090 87~265

2,800,000

4,752,230 46,479 7,806 147,250 25,993 493 t 708 35,555,485_ 37 l 554,134

205,859

205,859

3 l 171,516
51 ~409

163,771

3,386,696

3,289~230

24 J 088
872)862

48,090 87,265
441 120

348,000 348,000 348,000
370~400 1,523,024 7,661,821

104 1862 113~941

2l 800,OOO

131 t 100 6,889,627 7 t 692)481
4 r 044 l 871 46 j 479 7,806 147,250 25 r 993 145,708 20 j 411.066 17,464 t 446

4,546,371 46r 479 7,806 147,250 25,993 493,708 32 j 168,789 33,367,954

4 7 752,230 46~479 7,806 147,250 25 F993 493~708 35~555,4"~5 37,554 1 134
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
General Fund

Consolidating Statement of Revenues~ Expenditures and Changes tn Fund Balances by Sub-Fund
Year Ended June 30~ 2009

Capitat Parking
General Open Space Improvement Authority

Revenues:
Taxes $ 35,540,089 31636,563
Licenses and permits 1 J 141,821
Fines and penalties 3~400 1,803,776
Investment income 1,454,785
Rental 387 t 562
IntergavernmentaI 9841875 1,505 t 071
Charges for services 6~690~196 3~725

Parking meters~ lots and permits 4,715,786
Development tax
Other 384,001 33,033 732,500

Totar revenues 46~586,729 33~O33 7l681,635 4~715r786

Expenditure5:

Current
General government 3,977~543

Community development 3 l 636 J 575
Public safety 24 r 241 r 729 763,263
Public works 9,565,866 1j 175,642
Recreation and social services 3,986 1812

Capital expenditures 9691964 74,228 12,3351549 1081705

Total expenditures 46,378,489 74,228 12,335,549 2 t 0471610

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

aver (under) expendftures 208,240 (41 j 195) (4,653,914) 2 j 668.176

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1j 822 j 843 468 j OOO
Transfers Qut (325~OOO) (333 t 799) (1 j 302 l 400)
Sale of land and equipment 7,223

Totat other financing sources (uses) 1J505f066 134~201 (1,302f400)

Net change in fund balances 1~713~306 (41,195) (4 l 519 t 713) 11365~776

Fund balances, beginning of year j as restated 12,841 r896 359,594 16l547,294 3,180,595

Fund balances, end of year $ 14 1555,202 318 t 399 12,O27~581 4l546~371

80



3,977 l 543 4 l 047,877
3 1636 t 575 3,399,926

25~OO4.992 23 t 059 l 704
1Oj741 ,508 101224,468

4~740 3 t 991 ,552 3l 850,406
13~488,446 16~944t897

4 j 740 60,840 l 616 61,527,278

2,975 6,822 570 4 r493 5,113 (1 ~798,720) (2,638 7226)

(1 j 168 l 000) 1 t 1221843 1t074rOOO
(67,000) (101 j OOO) 1r 168 j OOO (961,199) (1 j 263 j328)

7,223 302,572

(67 t OOO) (101,000) 168 t 867 113,244

2,975 (BOt 178) 570 (96,507) 5J 113 (1 ,629 F853) (2 l 524 t 982)

43 t 504 67,984 146 t680 122,500 488,595 33,798,642 35,892,936

46,479 7,806 147,250 25 1 993 493,708 32 1168 J 789 33,367 j 954

(1) Transfers within the group of funds that are consofidated together to form the general fund for purposes
of the combined financial statements have been eliminated on this schedule.
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues (other than expendable trusts
and major capital projects) and the related expenditures which are regally required to be
accounted for rn a separate fund.

The City of Laguna Beach has the following non-major Special Revenue Funds:

Gas Tax Fund

This fund is used to account for the gasoline tax revenues and Measure M sales taxes which are
used for maintenance and improvements of Ctty streets.

S,tr.ee~ Lighting District Fund

This fund is used to account for revenue and expenditures associated with maintenance and
use of the City's street lighting system.

Miscellaneous Grants Fund

Thrs fund is used to account for grant programs such as the Community Development Block
Grant police grants such as Citizens Option for Public Safety and water quality grants.

Asset Forfeiture Fund

This fund is used to account for money received under federal and state programs distributing
property confiscated from iltegat activities.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources forl and the payment
ofr long-term debt principat and tnterest.

The City of Laguna Beach has the following major Debt Service Fund:

General Obligation Bonds

This fund is used to account for the resources and payment of general obligation bond principat
and interest from a genera~ obligation ad valorem tax levy.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital
faciHties other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

The City of Laguna Beach has the foJlow~ng major Capital Projects Fund~

Capital Projects

This fund tS used to account for assessment drstrict utility undergrounding projects wh~ch are
funded by property owners.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
Nonmajor Spectal Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30 t 2009

(With Comparative Totals for June 30 t 2008)

Gas Street LJghting MiscelJaneous

Tax District Grants

Assets

Cash and investments $ 1,684,722 1 ~ 183 t 673
Receivables:
Taxes 23,053
Intergovernmental 95 t 587 21,565

Advances to other funds 1,OOO~OOO
Property held for investment 354 t 444

Total assets $ 1,780 l ;?O9 2 ,561 5 170 21,565

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities $ 38~602 30,256 5 r 179

Due to other funds 14,508
Deferred revenue
Advances from other funds 4,800,000

Total liabiJities 4 r838,602 30,256 19,687

Fund balances (deficit):
Reserved:

Encumbrances 1t312 t 550
Advances to other funds 1,OOOJ OOO
Property held for investment 354,444

Unreserved:
Designated for
reappropriations for
continuing projects 25~OOO

Undesignated (4,370,843) 1,151,470 1,878

Total fund balances (deficit) (3 1058 1293) 2,530,914 1,878

Total liabilities and
and fund balances $ 1 ~ 780~309 2~561 J 170 21 J565
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Asset

Forfeiture

Totals

2009 2008

129,892 2,998,287 27759~533

23,053 20 J 530
25 J 021 142~ 173 186,088

1,OOOtOOO
354 J444 354,444

154~913 4~517,957 3~32.0,595

154,913

154,913

1~3121550

1,000,000
354 J 444

25 1000
(3,062~582)

(370 t 588)

4,517,957

354 J 444

920 1800
1t479,607

3,320,595.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues l Expenditures and Changes jn Fund Balances
Year Ended June 30,2009

(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30~ 2008)

Gas Street Lighting Miscellaneous
Tax District Grants

Revenues:
Taxes $ 303,556 1,073 1669
Fines and penalties
Investment income 45,098
Jntergovernmental 1t358t431 6 t 500 132,229
Other 43~500 202

Total revenues 1,750,585 1,O80~371 132~229

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 43 r040
Public works 308 t 313
Recreation and social services 15 t OOO

Capital expenditures 4 t659 t 952

Total expenditures 4~659~952 308,313 58,040

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (2,909 t 367) 772 J 058 74,189

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 17,927

Transfers out (1 ,O47~OOO) (75,843)

Total other financing sources

(uses) (1,047,000) (57,916)

Net change in fund balances (3 t956,367) 772 r058 16 t 273

Fund balances (deficit), beginning

of year 898,074 1t758,856 (14,395)

Fund balances (deficit), end of year $ (3~058J293) 21530,914 1,878
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Asset Totals
Forfeiture 2009 2008

1r377,225 1,356~ 123
32 1430

4,151 49,249 46 t436
11497 t 160 1,596 J944

38~446 82,148 6 J 372

42~597 31005 1782 3,038 J 305

43,040 18~726

308,313 276 t 695
15,000 15,000

4,659,952 1,458,521

5l 026 J 305 1~768~942

42,597 (2,020~523)

17 1927 655,000
(1,122,843) (1,102 t 367)

(1 ,104,916) (447,367)

42,597 (3,125,439) 821 t 996

112 J 316 2 t754,851 11932~855

154,913 (370,588) 2,754~8~1
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund

Gas Tax Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30} 2009

(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30$ 2008)
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2008
Actual

340 1433
42,247

1l480~927

655,000
(624,000)

31,000

578,981

319,093

898,074



CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund

Street Lighting District Fund

Schedule of Revenues~ Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2009

(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30~ 2008)

Variance with
Final BUdget

Final Positivel 2008
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Taxes $ 1~O261000 1~O73~669 47 1669 1,O15~690
Intergovernmental 6,000 6,500 500
Other 202 202 6%372

Total revenues 1,O32~OOO 1~O80~371 48,371 11022,062

Expenditures:
Current

Public works 309,800 308,313 1~487 276 t 695

Capital expenditures 25,000 25 r OOO 142 t 895

Total expenditures 334~800 308 t 313 26,487 419~590

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures 697 r200 772~O58 74,858 602 J472

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (378,367)

Total other financing sources (uses) (378,367)

Net change in fund balances 697 t 200 772 t 058 74,858 224 1 105

Fund balances~ beginning of year 1,758,856 1,758 t 856 1,534,751

Fund balances J end of year $ 2,456,056 2,530,914 74 J 858 1,758,856
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund

Miscellaneous Grants Fund

Schedule of Revenues~ Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2009

(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30l 2008)

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive/ 2008
Budget Actual (Negative) Actuat

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 149~951 132 t 229 (17 ~722) 116,017

Total revenues 149,951 132,229 (17,722) 116,017

Expenditures:
Current

Public safety 46,051 43 J 040 3~O11 18 J 726

Recreation and social services 15,000 15~OOO 15 t OOO

Total expenditures 61 1051 58,040 3r011 33,726

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures 88,900 74,189 (14,711 ) 82,291

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 17~927 17,927
Transfers out (75 J 843) (75,843) (1 OO~OOO)

Total other financing sources (uses) (57 J 916) (57 t 916) (100,000)

Net change in fund balances 88,900 16,273 (72~627) (17 f 709)

Fund balances (deficit)~ beginning of year (14 f 395) (14 J 395) 3,314

Fund balances, end of year $ 74~505 1~878 (72,627) (14 l 395)
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Non-Major Special Revenue Fund

Asset Forfeiture Fund

Schedule of Revenues t Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30~ 2009

(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30, 2008)

Final
Budget Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive/ 2008
(Negative) Actuaf

Revenues:
Fines and penalties
Investment income

Other

Total revenues

$
4,151

38}446

42}597

32,430
4,189

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Fund balances} beginning of year 112,316

Fund balances, end of year $ 112,316
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42,597

1121316

154,913

42,597

42,597

36,619

75 t697

112t 316



CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Major Debt Service Fund

General Obligation Bonds

Schedule of Revenues1 Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2009

(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30 t 2008)

Variance with

Final Budget

Final Positive! 2008
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:
Taxes $ 1,6571000 1,558,660 (98,340) 1,592,143

Investment income 50,000 48,875 (1,125) 62 1788
Intergovernmental 8,000 5 t 828 (2~172) 6~319

Total revenues 1,715 J OOO 1)613~363 (101,637) 1,661 ~250

Expenditures:
Debt service:

Principal 1t360~OOO 1l360~OOO 1,310,000

Interest and fiscal charges 255 J 200 251 ~355 3 J 845 309r OO6

Total expenditures 1,615,200 1,611 ~355 3~845 1~619JOO6

Excess of revenues over (under)

expenditures 99,800 2,008 (97,792) 42,244

Fund balances~ beginning of year 2,119l 420 2~ 119,420 2~077~176

Fund balances, end of year $ 2,219 l 220 2, 121 ~428 (97,792) 2l 119,420
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Major Capital Projects Fund

Capital Projects

Schedule of Revenues l Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ­

Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2009

(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30 J 2008)

Variance with

Final Budget

Final Positive/ 2008
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

Revenues:

Investment income $ 112,594 1121594 158,263
Intergovernmental 848,754 848~754

Other 182,110 93}O19 (89 J 091 ) 604,597

Total revenues 1,O30~864 1,054,367 23,503 762,860

Expenditures:

Capital expenditures 3r336 t 859 846,355 2,490}504 3 t 020 t 398

Total expenditures 3,336,859 846,355 2~490~504 3~O20~398

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,305,995) 208 r012 2 t 514,007 (2,257,538)

Other financing sources:
Transfers in 28~367

Proceeds of bond 584,539

Total other financing sources 612,906

Net change in fund balances (2 r305 J 995) 208 1012 2,514 t OO7 (1 l 644,632)

Fund balances J beginning of year 2~782J791 2~782)791 4,427~423

Fund balances t end of year $ 476,796 2,990~803 2~514,OO7 2,782,791
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Insurance and Employee Benefits Fund

This fund is used to account for the cost of providing employee benefits and various forms of
insurance (general liability~ workers t compensation 1 and all other forms of employee group
rnsurance) provided to the various City departments.

Vehicle Replacement Fund

This fund was created to acquire vehicles and other significant equipment for rental to the
operating departments.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
InternaJ Service Funds

Combining Statement of Net Assets
June 301 2009

(W~th Comparative Totals For June 30, 2008)

Insurance and Vehicle Totals

Employee Benefits Replacement 2009 2008

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 11,932,561 1,777,090 13,709 t 651 15,025,615
Receivables:

Accounts 157 157 16,997
Prepaids 247,536 247 J536 220,395

Total current assets 12 J 180,254 1~777t090 13 J 957 1344 15~263,OO7

Noncurrent assets:
Advances to other funds 1,OOOtOOO 1,OOO~OOO
Notes receivable 497 1072 203,502 700,574 731 ,348

Property held for investment 1,356,153 321 t656 1,677,809 11679,809
Capital assets t net of depreciation 3t220~778 3,220,778 3,420~900

Total noncurrent assets 1,853,225 4~745?936 6,599 t 161 5,832,057

Total assets 14,0331479 6,523,026 20,556,505 21 ~O95,O64

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 185t490 3,035 188 t 525 160,711
Compensated absences due

within one year 2,727,269 2t727~269 2~655J477

Insurance claims payable
due within one year 1t552,705 11552,705 1 1 535,834

Total current liabilities 4~465,464 3~O35 4 l 468,499 4,352~O22

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences 729~967 729,967 663 J 869
Insurance claims payable 2 J883,595 2,883,595 2,904~484

Net OPES Ifability 55 t 492 55)492

Total non-current liabilities 3,669~O54 3,669~O54 3 J 568,353

Total riabilities 8 J 134,518 3,035 81137,553 7,920 t 375

Net Assets

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets 3,220J778 3~220~778 3 J 420 r900
Unrestricted 5,898 J 961 3~299~213 9t198,174 9~753t789

Tatal net assets ~ 5~8981961 6 t 51 g~991 12 l 418,952 13,174,689-
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Ffows

Year Ended June 30 T 2009

(With Comparative Totals For Year Ended June 30 f 2008)

Insurance
and

Employee Vehicle Totals

Benefits Replacement 2009 2008
Cash trows from operating actrvitjes:

Cash received from user departments $ 6r480,815 1~021 ,001 7 t 501 1816 7r 166,895
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and services (6 l 778,046) (118~O86) (6,896~132) (4,931~112)

Cash payments to emp~oyees for services (495,892) (495~892) (529 l 942)

Net cash provided by (used for)
operati ng activi ties (793,123) 902,915 109 1792 11705,841

Cash trows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from other funds 222 r328
Advances paid to other funds (1

1
OOO l OOO) (1,DOG r CCO)

Loan principal received 19~928 12~846 32J774 12 t 747

Net cash provided by (used for)
noncapital financing activities 19 1928 (987,154) (967 l 226) 235~O75

Cash flows from capital and rerated
financin9 activi ties:

Purchase of capital assets (1,014,242) (1,014 r242) (1 ,602~924)

Issuance of notes (515,000)
Proceeds from sate of capitaJ assets 514 r 913 514t 913 216 t497

Net cash provided by (used for)
capitaI and reIated financin9 activities (499 J 329) (499,329) (1 J901j427)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 29 1291 11 1508 40~799 11 t78D

Net cash provided by (used for)
investing activitres 29,291 11 1 508 40,799 11.780

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents (743~904) (572 t 060) (1 ~3151964) 51,269

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 12~676J465 2J349 1150 15)025 1615 141974,346

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 11 J9321561 1J777,090 13,709l~§~"1 15,025,615

(Continued)
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
Internal Service Funds

Combinrng Statement of Cash Flows
(Continued)

Insurance
and

Employee VehicJe Totafs

Benefits Replacement 2009 2008

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provi ded by (used for) operatin9 activities:

Operating income (loss) $ (1,023,654) 293,721 (729~933) 496,326
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:

Depreciation 699,453 699,453 647,980
Miscellaneous income 707 707
Loss on disposal of capitar assets (67 l 310) (67,310)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 1 ~ 128 15,712 16,840 (13,965)
(Increase) decrease in prepaids (27,141 ) (27,141) (24,922)
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued HabHities 67~180 (39~368) 27,812 (135,757)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
payable 1371890 137~890 493 j 224

Increase (decrease) in Net OPES liability 55 t492 55 1492
Increase (decrease) in insurance claims
payable (4 1018) (4,018) 242~955

Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities $ (793 J 123) 902~915 109,792 1,705~841
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AGENCY FUNDS

1911 Act Bonds Fund

The City Treasurer of the City of Laguna Beach acts as the agent for the bondholders. The Clty
Treasurer receives the monies for assessments and disburses the monies collected to the

. bondholders.

1915 Act Bonds Fund

This fund was created to account for the debt service- and reserves required by the bond
indentures related to undergrounding and tnfrastructure improvements associated with various
assessment distrjcts.

Deposits Fund

The purpose of this fund is to account for deposits placed by developers and individuals for
performance bonds or safe keeping.
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
June 30 1 2009

(With Comparative Totafs For June 30~ 2008)

1911 Act 1915 Act Totals
Bonds Bonds Deposits 2009 2008

Assets

Cash and investments $ 13,724 2,955~452 2,469,934 5,439 t 110 5,625 J 760
Investments with fiscaf agent 1,416,536 1r416,536 1t596~859
Receivables:

Accounts 7 1857 7,857 111,318
Intergovernmental 45,312 45,312 48,720

Total assets $ 13,724 4,41 7 1300 2,477,791 6,908 J 815 7,382,657

Liabilities

Accounts payable and
accrued liabmt~es $ 7 1829 40,304 48,133 77,462

Deposits 2,437 l487 2,437~487 2,845,427
Due to bondholders 131724 4,409 J 471 4,4231 195 4~459l768

TotaI liabHities $ 13,724 4J417?~OO 2,477 t 791 6,908r815 7r 382,657
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH
Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiducjary Assets and Liabilities
June 30, 2009

Balance Balance
July 1, 2008 Additions Deletions June 30, 2009

1911 Act Bonds

Assets
Cash and Investments $ 14,325 13,724 141325 13~724

Liabi1 ities

Due to bondholders $ 14,325 13j724 14,325 13 F724

1915 Act Bonds

Assets
Cashand jnvestments $ 2,808,384 .2,955 l 452 2~808,384 2,955,452
tnvestments with fi seaI agent 1}596 1859 1,416 1536 1~596,859 1,416,536
Receivables:
'ntergovernmentaJ 40t 877 45,312 40,877 45,312

Total assets $ 4,446,120 4~417,300 4,446,120 4,417 T300

Liabilities
Accounts payable and

accrued IjabiHUes $ 677 7,829 677 7~829

Due to bondholders 4,445 1443 4 j409,471 4,445,443 4,409,471

Total liabilities 4 1446,120 4 r417 l 300 4 1446,120 4 l 417 l 300

Deposits

Assets
Cash and investments $ 2,803,051 2,469 l 934 2,803,051 2,469,934
Receivables:
Accounts 111,318 7~857 111 1318 7,857
IntergovernmentaI 7,843 7 1843

Total assets $ 2 l 922 t 212 ?~477j791 2f 922,212 2,477 l 791

Liabilities
Accounts payabte and

accrued nabiIities $ 76,785 40 r 304 76,785 40,304
Deposits 2~845,427 2~437l487 2f 845,427 2j437~487

Total liabilities $ 2~922~212 2
F
477,791 2t922,212 2,477,791_

TOTALS

Assets
Cash and investments $ 5l625~760 5,439,110 5 t 625 l 760 5,439l 110
Inve8tments with fiscaI agent 1,596,859 1,416l 536 1t596~859 1,416,536
ReceivabIes:
Accounts 111,318 7,857.00 111~318 7,857,00
~ ntergovernmenta~ 48 1 720 45,312 48 t 720 45,312

Total assets $ 7r 382,657 6,90?t~J5 7,382,657 6 l 908,815

Liabilities
Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities $ 77~462 48,133 77,462 48~133
Deposits 2 T845,427 2 j 437 t 487 2 1845 1427 2,437,487
Due to bondholders 4~459f768 4,423,195 4,459 T768 4,423} 195

TotaI UabiI ities $ 7,382~657 6,908~815 7l 382,657 6,908 t815
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OTHER INFORMATION
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City of Laguna Beach

Net Assets by Component

Last Seven Frscal Years

(accrual basis of accounti ng)

Flsca' Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Govern menta I activities:

invested in capitai assets,

net of related debt $ 88,025,542 $ 100,630,789 $ 105~408,336 $ 124,111/940 $ 285,605~573 $ 305,837,234 $ 318,076,672

Restricted 10,O32~695 8,324,762 9,726,623 10,449,060 11,766,456 10,754,223 10,806,358

Unrest ricted 23,241,494 23,439~204 31,968,151 34,239,450 43,592,259 41 j 777,890 40,877~799

Total govern menta I

activities $ 121,299~731 $ 132,394,755 $ 147,lO3}110 $ 168,800,450 $ 340}964,288 $ 358,369}347 S 369,760,829

Business-type act jvjt jes;

Invested in capital assets}

net of related debt $ 1;429,586 $ 1,773,060 $ 1/498,938 $ 1,720,568 $ 2~ 702,993 $ 3/056,319 $ 2,706}697

Unrestricted 23,050 23,051 714,920 265,839 505,975 465,194 464,012

Total business type

activities $ 11452,636 $ 1,796,111 $ 2,213,858 $ 1,986,407 $ 3,208,968 $ 3}521~513 $ 3,170}709

Primary Government:

Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt $ 89,455,128 $ 102 j 403 1849 $ 106,907,274 $ 125,832,508 $ 288,308,566 $ 308 j 893,553 $ 320,783,369
Restricted 10,032,695 8 j 324,762 9,726,623 10/449 t 060 11,766j 456 10,754,223 10,806,358

Unrestricted 23 1264,544 23,462,255 32 j 683,071 34/505/289 44,098/234 42,243,084 41/341,811

Total busi ness type

activities $ 122,752,367 $ 134/190,866 $ 149,316}968 $ 170,786,857 $ 344}173,256 $ 361,890,860 $ 372}931}538

The City of Laguna Beach implemented GASB 34 for the fiscal year ended June 301 2003.

'nformation prior to the Implementation of GASB 34 is not available
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City of laguna Beach

Changes in Net Assets

Last Seven Fiscal Years

(accrua\ basis of accounHng)

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Expenses:

GavernmentaI activ! t jes:

Genera I government $ 3,124,084 $ 2,904,607 $ 4i294,820 $ 3,921,931 $ 4J 043,977 $ 4,326,076 $ 4,375,200

Community development 2,337i716 2,355,274 2,382,329 2,668,812 2,955,670 3i422,556 3,768,607
Pu blk Safety 16,112 1020 16}049,217 18,193,401 18i864/927 21i480,996 23,133,907 25,697/805

PubHc Works 16,998,409 13,172,223 11,063,217 21,427,184 13,372i777 22 1374}310 18 J 182,514

Recreation and social serVlces 2,895,627 2,851,119 3,164,928 3,415,130 3,609,896 3,839,208 4,147,762

Sewer service operating costs 3,551.,289 3..147 J 888 3,924,249 3,484j 183 4,561,407 4,682,498 5,850}4D3

Jnterest on long-term debt 1,344,024 968,961 518,189 521,755 511,304 408,619 368,191

TotaI gDvern mentaI activit ies

expenses 46,363,169 41,449,289 43,541,133 54,303,922 50/536,027 62,187,174 62,390,482

Business-type activities;

Munieipaf tra nsit $ I J 289,289 $ 1i453,091 $ 1,677,468 $ 1i664i811 $ 1,857,979 $ 2J183~SSO $ 2,318}378

TotaI bus ineS5-type act ivit ies

expenses $ 1/289~289 $ 1/453,091 ~77i468 $ 1,664,811 $ lj857/979 $ 2/183,550 $ 2}318 1378

Total primary government

expenses $ 47,652,458 $ 42,902,380 $ 45,218,601 $ 55,968i733 $ 52,394,006 $ 64/370,724 $ 64}708,860

Program reven ues:

Gavernmentatactivities:

Charges for Services:

Generat Government $ 763,533 $ 895,538 $ 954,161 $ 985/885 $ 1,097,636 $ l J 031,632 $ l i073 j 481

Community development 1i728 1284 2,317,751 2,680,048 2,775,360 2,811,790 2,635~214 2,587,192

Public safety 11 575,897 1}685,647 1}877,297 2i050,919 2,010,319 2~400t367 2,257 1248

Pu bl ic works 5,176,964 4,410,512 5,523 1490 4,893,227 6~113i731 5;329,796 6,563 i355

Recreation and social service 1,154,832 1,204/292 1i145,857 1,217,894 1~405,718 1,499,601 1,448;611

Sewer service operatlng cost~ 4/542~347 4,997~882 5,091,637 5i328i527 5,497~631 5i654;840 5,766,575

Operati ng Gra nts and

Contributions: 2,491,136 2,445}247 2,804/549 3,716 /412 5,017,124 6i159,388 5,445,042

Capital Gra nts and

Contri butions: SJ 147,937 909,854 2/453/596 14,298,137 15,865,514 7,300,066 1,083,774

Total governmental activities

program reven ues $ 22i580,930 $ 18,866,723 $ 22,530~635 $ 35,266,361 $ 39,819,463 $ 32,010/904 $ 26,225/278

Business-type activiti es

Charges for Services:

Municipal Translt $ 160/217 $ 184,466 $ 223,662 $ 325,015 $ 339,842 $ 348,146 $ 323,660

Operati ng Gra nts and
Cont r~but f0 ns: 973,931 li085~797 1,201,453 881,047 1,221,042 951,510 1,019,877

Capital Grants and

Cont rjbuttOn5~ 668,724 526,303 450,000 57}912 1,223~950 862,200 9,496

Total business-type activities

program revenues $ 1,802J872 $ 1,796,566 $ lj875,115 $ 1}263}974 $ 2,784 j 834 $ 2,161,856 $ l,353i033

Totaf primary government

program revenues $ 24,383,802 $ 20~663,289 $ 24/405,750 $ 36,530,335 $ 42,604,297 $ 34,172,760 $ 27,578,311

Net reven ues (expenses);

Govern mental actiVities $ (23,782,239) $ (22,582,566) $ (21,010/498) $ (19~037 ,561) $ (10 /716}564) $ (30/176,270) $ (36/165,204)

Business-typeact jvitie 5 513~583 343~475 197i647 (400,837) 926,855 (21,694) (965j34S)

Tota! net revenues (expenses) $ (23,268 J 656) $ (22~239,O91) $ (20 i 812,851) $ (19,438,398) $ (9,789,709) $ (30,197i964) $ (37,130,549)
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City of Laguna Beach

Cha nges inNet Assets

Last Seven FIsea I Yea rs

(accrual basis of accounting)

Flscaf Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Genera I Revenues and other cha nges in net assets:

GovernmentaI acti vlti es :

Taxes:

Property ta xes $ 14,987,265 $ 16}295,123 $ 19~355t411 $ 21,284,138 $ 23,447,241 $ 25,525,587 $ 26,973/472

Sales Tax 3,714,249 3/757,472 3,1531 636 3,623,610 3,924,620 4/074,094 3,427,084

Sa les tax in-l ieu 910,621 918,602 1,112,853 1}149,419 1,163,049

Tra nsient occupa ncy taxes 3,694,378 6,770,614 7,251,883 7,900,582 8,661,017 8,741,413 7,856,964

Other taxes 3,093,474 3,425,828 3,197,487 5,144,450 5,823,284 6)638,617 5J 759,315

Motor vehicle license fees, unrestricted 1,4161 513 1,073,809 266,988 171,850 144}395 111~385 85)458

Investment Income lr035 ,339 866,479 790,686 952 r890 1,646J417 1,952,936 1,768/663

Other generaJ revenue 1,113,806 1/450}806 987,200 912,165 1,042/577 551,766 754,080

Gatn on sale of assets 37,459 25~O41 59S~802 302 r575 (GOrOS?)

Transfers (27,738) {220,lOO) (1731386) (272,174) (386,OOO) (602,000)

Tota I governmentaI acti vities $ 29,027,286 $ 33,677/590 $ 35,718,853 $ 40,7341901 S 46,126,032 $ 48)661,792 $ 47,125,998

Business m type activtties

Investment Income $ - $ $ - $ $ 19,532 $ 13,197 $ 10}377

Othergenerat revenue 4/000 4rOOO 1}764

Gain or loss on sa Ie of assets (9,403)

Transfers 27,738 220,100 173}386 272,174 386,000 602,400

Totaf Bus!ness~type activltles $ 181 335 $ - $ 220,100 $ 173,386 $ 295 r706 $ 403,197 $ 614,541

Total Primary government $ 29,045 J 621 $ $ 351938,953 $ 40,908,287 $ 461421,738 $ 49,064,989 $ 47,740,539

Changes in net as-sets
Governmentat actiVities $ 5,245,047 $ 11,095,024 $ 14,708,355 $ 21,697~340 $ 35,409 r468 $ 18/485,522 $ 10,960,794

Busine55-type acti vitIes 531,918 343,475 417,747 {227}451} lr222r561 3811503 {350,804}

Tota1 primary government $ 5,776,965 $ 11,438,499 $ 15/126,102 $ 21,469,889 $ 36,632}029 $ 18,867,025 $ 10,6091990

The City of Laguna Beach implemented GASB 34 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003.

Information prior to the implementation of GASB 34 is not available
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City of La guna Beach
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds.

Last Seven Fiscal Years

(modified ace rua ~ ba5is of accaunt\ng)

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
General fund:

Reserved $ 2,631J536 $ 1,762,179 $ 1,965,077 $ 101917 1 199 $ 15J920,632 $ 81 211,027 $ 4,868r096

Unreserved 17J023,558 13,094 J 341 19,314,709 19,379,214 21,006,455 25,156,927 27,300,693
Total general fund $ 19,655,094 $ 14,856J520 $ 211 279,786 $ 30,296 f 413 S 36,927,087 $ 33,367,954 $ 32/168/789

Gas Tax Fund

Reserved $ 236,402 $ 232,777 $ 250,484 $ $ $ $
Unreserved 563,013 805,742 1,380,145 898,074 (3,058}293 )

Total gas tax fund $ 799,415 $ 1,038,519 $ 1,630,629 $ $ $ 898J074 $ (3,O58,293)

BIueb~ rd La ndsIide

Reserved $ $ $ $ l,245J 174 $ $ $
Unreserved (8 /394,353) ,14,203/915) {l,868J623) {2, 115,094}

Total bluebfrd fund $ $ $ $ (7 r149 r179) $ (14, 203J915) $ (1,868,623) $ (2~ 115,094)

Sewer service fund

Reserved $ 697J35 $ 75 1373 $ 2}382 t 349 S lr167~486 $ 533,047 $ $ 990,875

Unreserved 1,164,929 2,072J789 (345,289) I r775 r024 3,110,897 1,914,500 l,118~O68

Total sewer service fund $ 1~862,O64 $ 2,148,162 $ 21037r060 $ 2,942/510 $ 3}643J944 $ 1/914,500 $ 2;108 j 943

Genera1 obligation bonds fund

Reserved $ 1,761 r 187 $ 1,866,023 $ 2J014r063 $ 2,174,147 $ 2 r077,176 $ 2,119,420 $ 2,121,428

Unreserved

Total generat obligation bonds fund $ l,761 J 187 $ 1,866,023 $ 2~O141063 $ 2,174,147 $ 2,077,176 $ 2J119,420 S 2,121,428

Capjtal projects fund

Reserved $ 1,461,671 $ 353,459 $ IJ025r874 $ $ $ $
Unreserved 418,017 2,147,864 2r l01,113 2J 681,454 4,427,423 2/782,791 2,990,803

Total capltal projects fund $ 1,879J688 $ 2r501,323 $ 3,1261987 $ 2,681,454 $ 4,427,423 $ 2J782,791 $ 2,990,803

All other governmental funds

Reserved $ 11 553,324 $ 1,324/428 $ 1,104,444 $ 410~ 780 $ 729 r639 $ 354 r444 $ 2,666,994

Unreserved r reported in:

SpedaI revenue fu nds 1,644,335 1,007,450 l,002J079 3,862,638 3,1081 178 3,649 J 247 8~113,OO5

Capital project funds 2,7821791

Total aU other governmental funds $ 3,197,659 $ 2,331,878 $ 2,106,523 $ 4,273,418 $ 3J837r817 $ 6} 786,482 $ lOJ 779,999

The City of Laguna Beach implemented GASB 34 for the fiscal year ended June 3D, 2003.

Information prior to the implementation of GASB 34 is not available
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Clty of Laguna Beach

Changes in Fund BaJances of Governmenta1 Funds

last Seven FiscaJ Years

(modified accruaJ basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Revenues:

Taxes and Special Assessments $ 24J645~650 $ 27,674,519 $ 33,632,030 $ 37,249,362 $ 41,980,491 $ 45,061,416 $ 44 1868J922

License and permits 882,545 998J849 11 189,531 1,264,362 1,096,008 1,024,172 lJ141,821

Fi nes and pena It~es 1,171,368 1,284,874 1,529,719 1,598/359 1,476,739 1,96BJ877 1,807,176

Investment income 1,120,290 960,226 932,572 1,277,408 1,836,734 2,172,846 1,907,979

Rental jncome 400,928 403/376 450,735 4481309 369,318 354,560 387)562

!ntergovernmenta I 4,227,651 3,577,569 2,924,122 9,989,976 11,713,427 24,866,373 4J892J173

Cha rges fo r services 9,383,066 10,871,092 11/282,059 11,566,496 12,316,932 12,649,555 12,444,053

Park!ng meters r Jots and perm,ts 3A49,024 2~805/707 3,862A36 3J225}562 4~334/250 3/406J195 4,715,786

Development tax 627,812 372,123 356,855 386,146 276,472 152,469 6,441

Contributions from property owners 4,012J814 358,686 578,739

Other 572,059 677,375 547/486 806,114 1,938,787 2,556,833 2}238/673

Total Revenue $ 50,493,207 $ 49,984,396 $ 57J286,284 $ 67,812,094 $ 77,339,158 $ 94,213,296 $ 74J410,586

Expenditures

Current;

Genera I government $ 2/881,158 $ 2,930/520 $ 4,181/073 $ 3J758,978 $ 3,361,299 $ 4 ,047,877 $ 3,977,543

Communjty development 2,283.465 2,490,925 2 j 416,040 2,703,135 3,041,255 3,399,926 3,636,575

Public Safety 15,646/840 16,758,061 18J 641,992 19,267,767 22,092,500 23,078,430 25,048,032

Public works 8,4681 281 8,426,182 81 584,263 9,089/003 9,202,763 10,501,163 111049,821

Recreatlon and sociaf servkes 2J847,479 3/039,009 3,230J652 3,486,067 41437/225 3,865,406 4,006,552

Sewer servi ce operat ing costs 2,785,101 2/848/097 3~389,582 2,928,237 3~348J521 3,620,729 3,886,559

Capital expenditures 221180,636 10,216,779 6}865/535 23J870 t 902 36~404J842 33,322/037 24/039,610

Debt service:

Principle 1~425/000 9,286,834 1,660,000 1,730,000 2,101,314 2,199,676 11 6551 800

!nterest and fisca I charges 613,869 992,687 543,296 468,513 542/389 441}432 717,756

Tota1ExpendItures $ 591131~829 $ 56J989,094 $ 49,512,433 $ 67 j 302,602 $ 84/532JI08 $ 84 J476,676 $ 78,018,248.

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures $ (8,638,622) $ (7,004,698) $ 7,7731851 $ S09 r492 $ (7,192,950) $ 9,736,620 $ (3,607/662)

Other finandng sources (uses):

Transfer In $ 1,013,001 $ 2,397,537 S 1,557,042 $ 2,905,040 $ 3j OOO t 810 $ 1}857,367 $ 1,499,569

Tra nsfer Out (lJ 214 j 051) (lt809 j812) (3~581,690) {2,651,632} (31 346/660) (2,465/695) (2 ,101,969)

Issuance of Bond 1/6271140 524,543 2,269,830 584,539

Issuance of Loan 69J357 1,632,928 2,071,567 534,000 2JS86,128

Developer loan 8J707,OOO

Sa les of land and equipment 5,198 3J991 6,923 4,344 4,788J172 302,572 7,223

Total other financing sources (uses) 8,511 r148 591,716 {321,228} 2,415,223 8J783 j 719 812,783 1,990,951

Net cha nge 1n fund bafa nces $ (127,474) $ (6,412,982) $ 7J452,623 $ 2/924/715 $ 1,590,769 S 10,549,403 $ (lJ 616,711)

Debt service a5 a pereentage of

nonca pi ta I expendjtu res 5.8% 28.2% 5,4% 5.3% 5.8% 5,4% 4.6%

The City of Laguna Beach implemented GASB 34 for the f;scal year ended June 3D, 2003.

Information prior to the implementation of GASB 34 is not available
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten FiscaJ Years

Fiscal Year

Ended June Taxable Assessed Tatat Direct

30 Secured Unsecured Value Tax Rate

2000 4,076,837,369 79,043,412 4,155,880,781 0.149%

2001 4,472,147,085 75,997,407 4,548,144,492 0.147%

2002 4,975,476 1933 73,338,031 5,048,8141 964 0.146%

2003 5,410,641,646 75,742,398 5,486,384,044 0.146%

2004 5,945,977,936 91,846,719 6,0371 824,655 0.146%

2005 6,670,751,744 156,881,531 6,827,633,275 0.146%

2006 7,462/406/353 89,524,835 7,551 1931,188 0.146%

2007 8,209,054,191 92/955/130 8/302/009,321 O~146%

2008 9,035,861,459 87,362,786 9,123,224,245 0.146%

2009 9,647,441,774 103,225,460 9,750,667,234 0.146%

NOTE:

in 1978 the voters of the State of California passed Proposition 13 which limited the property taxes to a total

maximum rate of 1% based upon the assessed value of the property being taxed. Each year, the assessed
value of property may be increased by an n~nflation factor fl (limited to a maximum increase of 2%). With few

exceptions, property is only re-assessed at the tjme that rt tS sold to a new owner. At that pojnt, the new

assessed value is reassessed at the purchase price of the property sold. The assessed valuation data

shown above represents the only data currently available with respect to the actual market value of taxable

property and is subject to the limitations described above.

Source: Orange County Auditor Controlle(s Office
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates (1)

(Rate per $100 of assessed value)
last Ten Fiscal Years

2000 2001 2002 2003

City Direct Rates:

City basic rate $ 1.0000 $ 1.0000 $ 1.0000 S 1.0000

Total City Direct Rate $ 1.0000 S 1.0000 $ 1.0000 $ 1.0000

Overlapping Rates:

City of Laguna Beach Bonds 0.0418 0.0372 0.0320 0.0291

Unified School District Bonds 0.0376 0.0290

South Coast Water District 0.0407 0.0216 0.0193 0,0166

Metro Water District 0.0089 0.0088 0.0070 0.0067

Orange County 0.0007

Totat Direct Rate $ 1.09207 $ 1.06760 $ 1.09598 $ 1.08129

NOTE:

(1) Tax rates are for tax rate area 05-015. This area encompasses a majority of the total areas of the City.
There are a total of 48 tax rate areas in the City with tax rates from 1.03979 to 1.04883

(2) tn 1978, California voters passed Proposition 13 which sets the property tax rate at a 1.00% fixed

the subject property resides within. 1n addition to the 1.00% fixed amount, property owners

are charged taxes as a percentage of assessed property vatues for the payment of other debt

obfigations.

Source: Orange County Auditor Controller's Office
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

1.0000

1.0000

1.0000 $-----
1.0000 $

1.0000 $

1.0000 $

1.0000 $

1.0000 $

1.0000 $

1.0000 $

1.0000 $

1,0000 $

$

$

0.0223

0.0202

0.0108

0.0058

0.0197

0.0190

0.0098

0.0052

0.0179

0.0172

0.0090

0.0047

0.0179

0.0172

0.0090

0.0047

0.0162

0,0172

0.0096

0.0045

0.0152

0.0154

0.0093

0.0043

$ 1.05909 $ 1,05370 $ 1.04883 $ 1.04883 S 1.04756 $ 1.04421
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Principal Property tax Payers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2009 2000
Percent of Total Percent of Total

Taxable Assessed City Taxable Taxable Assessed City Taxable

Taxpayer Value Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value

Laguna Beach Luxury Hotel 171,211,270 1 1.76%

C'ub Laguna Partnership 44}O51,491 2 0.45% 36,908,447 1 0.38%

Sleepy Hollow Lane LlC 40,733 j 546 3 0.42%

Nevills Neil D Trust 30,17l/GOO 4 0.31%

Kenneth J. Sullivan III Trust 30,000,100 5 0.31%

Ira H. Rosenbratt Trust 25,000/000 6 0.26%

Donna YI Family Trust 23/496,657 7 0.24%

Gary J. Daichendt Trust 21,296,658 8 0.22%

Aliso Creek Prosperities LLC 19,741,448 9 0.20%

Inn at Laguna Beach LLC 19,416,152 10 0.20%

Treasure rsland Associates 35,316,559 2 0.36%

PW Acqutsitions XI 16,4801000 3 0.17%

Cox Communications 15,247,794 4 0.16%

Ocean Point Limited 11,220,126 5 0.12%

Matthew Alcone Trust 9,902,334 6 0.10%

Rick L. Rozar 9,899,400 7 0.10%

Regency Associates Limited 9,152/041 8 0.09%

Duane R. Roberts Trust 9,138,251 9 0.09%

James R. Mellor 7,927,789 10 0.08%

425,118,922 4.36% 161,192,741 1.48%

Source: HdL Coren & Cone

116



crTY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collections wrthin the Fiscal

Year of Levy Total Collection to Date

Fiscal Year CoJtectjon in

Ended June Taxes Levied for Percent of Subsequent Percent of

30 the Fiscal Year Amount Levy Years Amount Levy

2000 9,858,834 9,669,463 98.08% 189,371 9,858,834 100%

2001 10,760/392 10,543,374 97.98% 217,018 10,760,392 100%

2002 11,938/774 11,686,447 97.89% 252,327 11,938,774 100%

2003 12,895,845 12,655,796 98.14% 240,049 12}8951 845 100%

2004 14,215,094 14,006,384 98.53% 208 1 710 14,215,094 100%

2005 16,207,471 16,492,734 101.76% 285,263 16,777,997 104%

2006 181 222,850 17,817}435 97.78% 405/415 18,222,850 100%

2007 19,684/235 18,984,179 96.44% 700,056 19,684,235 100%

2008 21,536,874 20,677,967 96.01% 858,906 21/536/873 100%

2009 22/533,278 21/703 j S12 96.32% 829/766 22,533,278 100%

Source: Orange County Auditor Controllerls Office
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CfTY OF LAGUNA BEACH

legal Debt Margin

Last Ten FiscaI Yea rs

Fjscal Year

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Assessed va tuatton 4/155}880,781 4,548,144,492 5/048,814,964 5,486/384,044 6,037,824,655

Conversion percentage 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

Adjusted assessed valuation 11038,970/195 1/137,036,123 1,262,203,741 1/371,596/011 1,509,456,164

Debt li-mit percentage 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%

Debt limit 155/845/529 170,555,418 189,330/561 205/739,402 226[418,425

Total net debt applicable to limit:

GeneraI obtigati on bonds 13/362,089 12}692/076 11}346/297 10,138,813 8,913)977

Lega I debt rna rgi n $ 142,483,440 $ 157,863,342 $ 177,984,264 $ 195,600}589 $ 217/504,448

Total debt appJicable to the limit

as a percentage of debt Iimit 8.6% 7.4% 6.0% 4.9% 3,9%

Note:

The Government Code of the State of California provides for a legal debt limjt of 15% of gross assessed valuation. However,

this provrsion was enacted when assess"ed vafuatron was based upon 25% of market value. Effectjve wjth the 1981-82 fjscat

yea r, each pa reel is now assessed at 100% of rna rket va Iue {as of the most recent cha nge in ownersh jp for that parce1} , Th e

computations shown above reflect a conversion of assessed valuation data for each fiscal year from the current fuJI valuatjon

perspective to the 25% ievel that was in effect at the time that the legat debt margin was enacted by the State of Caljfornia

for IDca I governments located with in the state.

Source: Cjty Administrative Services Department
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Fiscal Year
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

6,827,633,275 7,551,931,188 8,302,009,321 9,123}224,245 9,750,667,234

25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

1,706,908,319 1,887,982/797 2,075,502,330 2} 280,806,061 2,437,666,809

15% 15% 15% 15% 15%

256,036,248 283,197,420 311}325,350 342,120,909 365,650,021

7,150,000

3.0% 2.2% 2.3%
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year Poputation Personat Jncome Per Capita Unemployment

(1) On thousands) (2) Jncome (2) Rates (3)

1999 24,928 96,288 34,194 2.7

2000 25,282 106,003 37,097 3,5

2001 24,157 1091010 37,638 4.0

2002 24,313 111,750 38,168 5,0

2003 24,589 117/722 39,828 4.8

2004 24,774 125,798 42,260 4.3

2005 24,969 135,587 45,465 3.8

2006 24}963 143,949 48,209 3.4

2007 25,131 * * 6.1

2008 25,186 * * 9.4

*Data is Unavai~able

Sources: (1) State Department of Finance

(2) Office of Economic Development (date shown is for the County)

(3) State of California Emp10yment Development Department (data shown is for the County)
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CtTY OF LAGUNA BEACH

FuU-time City Employees by Function

Last Ten FiscaI Yea rs

Fiscal Year

Function 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Generaf Government 14.00 15.00 15,00 17.10 17.63

Public Safety 128.00 132.00 133.00 134.00 131.00

Public Works 50.00 55.00 66.00 69.00 54.00

Community Development 21.40 21.40 22.60 23.60 23.60

Recreational and Cultural 6.75 6.75" 6.75 6.75 7TSO

Water Quality 15.00

Total 220.15 230,15 243.35 250,45 248.73

Source: City Administrative Services Department
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Fiscal Year

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

17.63 18.03 18.03 18.03 18.03

131.75 132.00 133~OO 135.00 134.00

56.00 56,00 56.00 56.00 56.00

24,00 24.00 26.00 26.00 29.00

7.50 7.50 7.50 7.50 7.50

15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00

251.88 252.53 255.53 257.53 259.53
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Operating Jndicators

Last Ten FiscaJ Years

Fiscal Year

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Police

Custodia' Arrests 1}350 1,441 2,467 2,936 3,358
Traffic Violations 11}213 11,020 8,519 6}945 579
Parki ng Violat ton s 45,997 48,697 42,496 43/786 38,335

Fire Protection;

Number of Cans Answered 2,033 2/090 2}309 2,432 2}432

Number of Inspections 294 299 500 709 709

Water Quatity:

Number of Service Connections 7,699 7,838 7,838 8,504 8,504

Daily Average Treatment in gaUons 2 2 2 2 2

Maximum daity capacity of treatment plant in gallons 4 4 4 4 4

Source: C~ty Administrative Services Department

N/A - Not currently availa ble.
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Fiscal Year

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

1,997 1,823 N/A N/A N/A
9,934 7,089 N/A N/A N/A

38,335 38,335 N/A N/A N/A

2,454

709

2,446

714
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

8,504

2

4

N/A
N/A

8,504

2
4
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CITY OF LAGUNA BEACH

Capital Asset Statistics by Function

Last Ten Ftscal Years

Fiscal Year

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Pollee

Stations 1 1 1 1 1

Fire:

Fire Stations 4 4 4 4 4

Public Works

Streets (miles) 93 93 93 93 93

Streetlights 1}241 1,241 1,241 1,241 1,241

Culture and Recreation

Community Centers 3 3 3 3 3

Parks 16 16 16 17 17
Park Acreage 57 57 60 47 47

Tennis Courts 12 12 12 12 12

Water Quality

Miles of sanitary sewers 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00

Miles of storm drains 78.00 78.00 78.00 78.00 78.00

Source: City Administrative Services Department
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